Tl 3 5 R AT T IR 4 7 R 2 il ot 0 550 o A R 2 ] B AR 2 7 Y I B WA B B T
B TEBENE IS FERATATEE] - S I TEZ R - BEASBL IR A 2 2 2 BB 2 AT o] 2l 5 127 28 1 s 2 2 AT 4
FE %55 A28 T 5 2T AT (T IR AR I B AT -

T4 T [ B AT ] FE A AR R IZ AT 1] ] il 725 P Ui i 2 2 P PP 8 il B3 A I M1 B 7 > 4
P 2 B R B A2 A Y A I > A 2 AN W B T o] i 2 Y R BB I % 5 Y A
P o RIS GEH A ERYE L = = AR (RAERT) ([R5 )) Bar - HER IR
T AN i 2 1A 1Y B RO E B 58 5 BETR IO i 2575 1 B RO REAE - 2 RS 7 56 1 18 22 2 7
HIBE o J3 56 [ 23 P 3 B AT 1] s 2 LA 7 IR S FETE 0T 1] o %17 IR T FE AT A B 12 8 1 R 19 2
A A RFLEPE RIS TR BTt A E R o A8 2 m 3l J i ) 56 [l 2. ] 28 5 ] 5

Bt =

TIVMIES PROPCRTY
£ Em = K =
TIMES PROPERTY HOLDINGS LIMITED
BREEERER 2 F
(2R 3 M 7 B A R 2 7] )
(R R5% - 01233)

BRETUXTHENELE

AR FIBEET AR R ESC R R B PR -

AR B AT IR R 5T BB A JE A T AR U B B LR G o SRR R B A
LR AIELR - UBS ~ 1 40 B B % A SR I P 2 W5 2 BR sl N > TMUBS ~ 16 % [
PR~ AR R BRI~ SRR EAK ~ PR L ALGRAT ~ JEE AR K A EE AR - S
Ly R AT SR W MR A B A T I R E A N o AN\ R SR IR T 15 K
TR A A T A B E LA A Ropria Yy £ IHE (B it
RS N EFUNA) RAVE & R HAL — M AR o AL A e R T LY
St Al T R R > DRI R 0 BT AR K TR A

A N TR SRR S B 117 o A4 e B AT BB £ b T
e -

F S B A 2 o 30D 19 R il el AT SRR T SR AT R A R T A e > O R BEAT
SRS - BUEE LA AR R BRI E B A N ml i IR R B A AT S o fin
RIREE ek - AN F I ST R AR A



R
4

ZE

NN
i

il

AR FIBEET AR R EC R IR B PREE -

S BE AT SR 50 LB JH A T 355K D0 e 56 BB 7€ o SRR AEE v B 8 R4
RAVEDR o UBS ~ 178 B % b A o I 5 70 T e 2 Bk foh Ml N > TUB'S ~ {228 B ¢
R R RSB FR - SEERSEAR - IE B B ARRERAT ~ EEAR O S AR P 2
BEAT ZE RN I A SEACOE e B I IR N - A B BB T R R
B RH o~ AR SR AR M RIS o i BRI IRRAR - UBS ~ I BB - R
B~ RRERBE S ~ SEERIEAR ~ IR B AR GRAT ~ EAROE ~ EEAR LA A A ()
FEHAAT) ARSI R ik o AL mRE R ST I Wk AR > il B R AT R

(AT

SRR KM A IR OROR B R IR SR IR S R o SRR AR & R R e R e
B 55 S E AT A SHUBI R B 52 o fe 2 88 R~ B B - A G A A AR R
BEAL SRR -

RRRITEBHNER

Z/NEPRIE Y S RET bR/ Sk J P SE YN R N i R Rt/ S ]
HYSEB B8 =07« (DY)2ERa 8k - RIB SR iR h B 08 RS2 > (i
TR - BPBAEE - &S MMM ESE = A B EWE > KRG EFH - |
[ E S 5 5 1R ) S8 BRI -

HERR BEAT SRR B AR 2 H T BUA (R R (R AR K B A SR M ) S B R IR
H (36 L e Lo soliAs ) S (it e T HoAth — LA S » AR wl el
PRI T DL R S AL i o R e wt ] > AT R 40 S T AR KR Y A

ki)

AN A R R IR IR B S T B o AR 2w W B B S BT A B SRR S AR T Y
éﬂ‘:{‘ °

RRAKRENERER

SR REN S - AR s TERREE R A EEEE T AR
“HET HIEFERAEE A A M R ([ % — MR ) o AR
EAEER Y EORMR AL AR M > BCBEAS A B B A DO AR B R -

2



—RER

FRR R AN 20 i 300 18 R A At ke B AT SR 4 T S AT A H A AR Y o ik WO R 3R AT
FRARLEEEE - SUEH AR BN H AL A/ e R B H R HAT S -

il 5 w0 M B Mp ek o AN R e BEAT SRR AR -

Bx

AR EH > BRICEIAIEES > T 8w BA LT

[ 1% 2R ¢

[ SRER M

(5B AR AT

[ 1R 2R ¢

[

[ A2 ] ]

(AR~ T3 M
[ A Y

[ 8 o] ¢

[ |
[ AR K 7

Jrt SR PR B BR Y W] SRR R B 1 M
i 2= BEAE e N S B T AR R BN 22 —

Merrill Lynch International > S5 558 & &5 1Y
W 5 2 BELAS e N R TR AR BN 2 —

LR BT > BMHE AT - FIRE%
B % B 5 T e T A BEAC R N B 6 i R PN
Z_A

BRI [ A R W] SRR B 6 R B
T AR Vo o N~ B RS R A N L S M 9 A
HANZ—

e AR SR - A 1T R A
VAL £ B 22

5 A 2 2 AT RS /) > — 5300 B 2 B O R 1
WAL B A R AT # A m - HRE I3 iR Bk 22 i
B bl

AN A B LM 8 2~ W

ity 70 P PR R o A PR o W] > SRR R KO 6 Y B
T Ak T N~ MG RS A B A N B T S R
HANZ—

o R A A AT L

J.P. Morgan Securities plc > S5 EEE K EE & 1)
ot T 2 SHAC e N S R MRS B BN Z —

3



AR

[T R

[ Jis B Tk

[ 27k
[ Bt =2 By |
[ Fh$ )8 2> mIE AR
Iy ASTE O IN

[ UBS |

[ SR |
E

[ % |

Tk, “F—-HAE=AH

Morgan Stanley & Co. International plc > 245 5F
B T BB %) B RS A BEAS M N BB O B A BN
Z_

AN AT AT A S IR S R R

A F R AT R

(H a1 4%) AR w - K&~ "SR A - UBS
V2 I R~ e PR R~ b GRS SEAK
5 B ELBRGRAT ~ E AR R 28 S JREAR P Mt g
BEAT R BER] AL T ek

— == REFFE (IERT)

& W5 28 o BT A IR ]

B0 JB 2 w4 PR Nt SR R 1 ) 95 R

V&R ZE IR B AS 23 w1 IR v I i g 2 ]

UBS AG > F#E0 4T » ZIR3E Loy & AT &

B Poh a8 N~ B A E A N R g R A BEN
Z_

SRR
%78
T it
RIS
R ERRARA
£ i
541

AR L HH » KL F BT HEF 55 P - B E LA - B8
FIRICE ~ BIMETCAER T FHRICE 5 UKL Al g 173 70 D5 (L

FE L A R g XL -



MRS AEE
BE-Z- O+ -A=+-HLEFENERERGFEUHHRR



B B RN S

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS" REPORT
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To the shareholders of Times Property Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Times
Property Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 90 to 218, which comprise
the consolidated and company statements of financial position as
at 31 December 2014, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

B R E ARG R A 8 Times Property Holdings Limited
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31 December 2014, and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 6 February 2015
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
PROFIT OR LOSS

HE_ZFT—UF+_HA=+—HLFE Year ended 31 December 2014
—E-mF =%
2014 2013
BtaE AR® T ARETIT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
A REVENUE 5 10,418,948 9,694,735
HE KA Cost of sales (7,232,639) (7,354,711)
EF GROSS PROFIT 3,186,309 2,340,024
S NSl Other income and gains 5 104,526 78,700
HELRMISHEEKAR Selling and marketing costs (483,398) (411,137)
THAX Administrative expenses (304,343) (285,629)
E A2 Other expenses (40,482) (16,493)
B & AN Finance costs 7 (231,959) (87,706)
RN Bi=Fa Share of profits and losses of associates 4,160 2,371
B B4 A R ;8 PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6 2,234,813 1,620,130
FIiSfAx Income tax expense 10 (881,131) (646,200)
FEFE PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 1,353,682 973,930
TH & IEEA Attributable to:
VAN/NEIEZ RSN Owners of the Company 11 1,279,026 987,022
JEFE IS HE 2 Non-controlling interests 74,656 (13,092)
1,353,682 973,930
EARERESZRTRTA EARNINGS PER SHARE
EhHERAER ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
AR Basic
— FENHE — For profit for the year 13 RMB74 cents RMB75 cents
AR¥E745% AREET55
g Diluted
— FENHE — For profit for the year 13 RMB72 cents RMB75 cents

AR¥T725% AR®ET755

AEEREMNEBMNBRENFBEERTERE Details of the dividends payable and proposed for the year are
fiaE12 o disclosed in note 12 to the financial statements.

<>® B R E ARG R A 8 Times Property Holdings Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HE_FT—UF+_HA=+—HLFE Year ended 31 December 2014

—E—F —T—=F
2014 2013
AR¥FIT AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FEFE PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 1,353,682 973,930
Hir 2mEKA OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
REEBRRGENES Other comprehensive loss to be reclassified to
BamEMme2EEIR profit or loss in subsequent periods:
MEBINETBOIE K E5E Exchange differences on translation
of foreign operations (21,562) (9,748)
FEHMZEER OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR THE YEAR (21,562) (9,748)
FEXHEKBAEE TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR 1,332,120 964,182
T A& IBE, Attributable to:
KANRHEE A Owners of the Company 1,257,464 977,274
FE 1 AR R Non-controlling interests 74,656 (13,092)
1,332,120 964,182

2014 £ E R & Annual Report 2014 %
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

—ZF—MF+= A=-+—H 31 December 2014

—E-mF =%
2014 2013
BtaE AR¥FT ARBTFIT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
FRBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
M - BENKERE Property, plant and equipment 14 885,012 633,806
AR B EFIE Prepaid land lease payments 15 1,385,474 1,385,474
"EME Investment properties 16 1,397,940 1,582,000
R ERRIMNIEE Investments in associates 18 49,465 45,304
AHHERE Available-for-sales investment 20,000 —
REHIAE E Deferred tax assets 19 209,574 84,737
IEREBEELT Total non-current assets 3,947,465 3,731,321
REBEE CURRENT ASSETS
T Tt EE A Prepaid land lease payments 15 1,041,121 755,881
FEE R Y Properties under development 20 17,304,980 13,217,733
ERTHIEDNENME Completed properties held for sale 21 1,777,273 803,464
EWE FFIE Trade receivables 22 1,224,877 472,532
ERFIE - ZE R Prepayments, deposits and
o th & 3k IB other receivables 23 1,872,581 1,895,624
JE U & R B B FIE Amount due from an associate 24 222,110 70,210
A ERE Available-for-sale investments — 3,100
TESB K Tax prepayments 25 276,560 222349
SR BIERITF Restricted bank deposits 26 2,691,848 1,946,083
BeRIBEZEY Cash and cash equivalents 26 2,725,737 1,721,481
MEYEEER Total current assets 29,137,087 21,108,457
REBAE CURRENT LIABILITIES
B E S F0E Trade payables 27 3,556,068 2,413,862
H b & 0B K FE FT RIE Other payables and accruals 28 10,717,343 9,392,801
FFERRITERREMER Interest-bearing bank loans and
other borrowings 29 1,786,277 1,977,494
FE BT 5K Tax payable 25 937,256 397,896
mE B EERE Total current liabilities 16,996,944 14,182,053
RBEEFE NET CURRENT ASSETS 12,140,143 6,926,404
EEHAER TOTAL ASSETS LESS
REBAE CURRENT LIABILITIES 16,087,608 10,657,725

<>® B R E ARG R A 8 Times Property Holdings Limited
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2014 2013

KfaE AR¥FIT ARBTFIT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
EERAERRBAE TOTAL ASSETS LESS
CURRENT LIABILITIES 16,087,608 10,657,725
RBEE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
FFERITERREME Interest-bearing bank loans and
other borrowings 29 9,005,104 5,425,054
AT ESH Convertible bonds 30 318,105 —
EERIEEE Deferred tax liabilities 19 1,047,344 1,224,250
JEmEBaERRE Total non-current liabilities 10,370,553 6,649,304
FEE Net assets 5,717,055 4,008,421
B EQUITY
RAGEE AEGER Equity attributable to owners
of the Company
%N Share capital 31 135,778 135,778
1 Reserves 33 5,055,304 3,669,965
BEAERE Proposed final dividend 12 247,135 188,486
5,438,217 3,994,229
IEVE IR M = Non-controlling interests 278,838 14,192
SRR Total equity 5,717,055 4,008,421
X RS
Shum Chiu Hung Niu Ji Min
EE E
Director Director

2014 £ E R & Annual Report 2014 %
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

HEZZ—MMF+H=T—HIEFE Year ended 31 December 2014
LNEEPN
Attributable to owners of the Company
i EERH i R
e HEE  HARR  EREE MEE  EHRE  EEME KBRS Ba  BaiE
Share Statutory  Exchange Proposed Non-
Share  premium  Contributed Capital surplus  franslation  Refained final controlling Total
capital account surplus reserve funds resenve profits dividend Total interests equity
NEETR ARETT AREFT ARETT ARETT AREFT ARETT ARETT ARETT AREFT ARETT
RMBOOO ~ RMBUOO ~ RMBUOO  RMBOOO  RMBUOO ~ RMBUXO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO ~ RMBUOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO
(Hiz31) (HaE33m)) (Ha3se) (HE33d)
(note 31) (note 33(b)) ~ (nate 33(c)) ~ (nate 33(cf)
HZ5-=F-A-8 At 1 January 2013 — 1452565 8113 31,29 126,49 (16971) 111829 — 2797%6 486387 3206113
Total comprenensive income/(loss) for the year — - - — - (9,748) 987,02 - 977,274 (13092 964,182
Transfer to reserve funds (note 33(d)) - - - - 147,793 - (147793) - - - -
Deregistration of a subsidiary - - — - (2,807) — 2807 - - - -
WENBAR Acquisiton of subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - 10353 10353
- pEadic 3 Acquisiion of non-controlling interests - - - 6879 - - - - 6879 (4794%)  (472577)
| Establishment of a subsidiary - - - - - - - - — 10,000 10000
BAREEN Capitalisation issue 101,827 (101,827) - - - - - - - - -
BEETHRNES Issue of shares in connection with the listing 31 1188051 - - — — — — 1222002 — 12200
O Share issue expenses - (57,739) - - - - - - (57,739) - (57,739)
BRkE Dividend declared - (873913) - - - - - - (873913) - (873913)
“E-CEEERERE(MEL)  Proposed final 2013 dividend (note 12) —  (188480) - - - - — 188486 - - -
RZE-ZE+ZAZT-8 At 31 December 2013 135778 1418651 8113 B4 271481 (26719) 1,960,265 183486 3,994,229 14192 4008421
FNRREAEE
Attributable to owners of the Company
B #REH *ER
e BER BARR  ERERE MEE  EARE BREEE RERE h BE  RHEE
Share Statutory  Exchange Proposed Non-
Share  premium  Contributed Capital surplus  translation  Retained final controlling Total
capital account surplus reserve funds reserve profits  dividend Total interests equity
ABETL AREFr ARETR ARETL AREFn ARETT AREFr ARETRL AREFn ARETR ARETR
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
(H&E31) (HizE33(b) (H&33(c) (K& 33(d)
(note 31) (note 33(b))  (note 33(c))  (note 33(d))
At 31 December 2013 and 1 January 2014 135,778 1,418,651 8113 38174 271481 (267190 1,960,265 188486 3,994,229 14,192 4,008,421
Total comprenensive income/(loss) for the year - - - - —  (21,562) 1,279,026 — 1,257,464 74,656 1,332,120
ERZEENER( W;133(d) Transfer o reserve funds (note 33(d)) - - - — 194062 —  (194,062) - - - -
FERERLE Capital contribution by non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - — 189990 189,990
BHHE-HHBLTER Partial disposal of interest in a subsidiary
(TaXEEE) without loss of control - - — 375010 - - - — 375010 — 375010
ERZF-=FRERE(HE12)  Finel 2013 dividend paid (note 12) - - - - - - —  (188486)  (188,486) —  (188486)
T-MERARARE(HE12)  Proposed final 2014 dividend (nofe 12) - (247,135) - - - - — 247135 - - -
RZE-METZA=ZT-8 At 31 December 2014 135778 1,171)516* 8113*  413,184*  465543*  (48,281)* 3,045,229* 247,135 5438217 278838 5,717,055
* ZEREREPRGEAMBEMRARPNGESHE - * These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves in the consolidated

statement of financial position.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

&=

OF CASH FLOWS

HE2—_Z—WWFE+=-A=+—HILFE Year ended 31 December 2014
—E—-F —E—=F
2014 2013
[t 5% AR®Fx AR Fr
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
RETHFBHRERE CASH FLOWS FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
B 5 A A1) Profit before tax 2,234,813 1,620,130
FEE Adjustments for:
B & AR Finance costs 7 231,959 87,706
R E A A Em Share of profits and losses of associates (4,160) (2,371)
RIT R E A F B A Bank and other interest income (17,900) (9,574)
e Depreciation 14 61,514 55,648
REMERARBENEE Changes in fair value of
investment properties 16 (57,800) (42,000)
ERTHIENENMERN Reversal of impairment

SR B ] of completed properties held for sale — (1,665)
TENRIE - ke RHM Reversal of impairment of prepayments,

J?’EEHSZMIEE’J/)BZTE%@ deposits and other receivables — (1,000)
HEWZE  WERRZHEER Loss on disposal of items of property,

’ &5 18 plant and equipment 235 34
HEWNE QR WS Gains on disposal of subsidiaries — (1,414)
W BE BT /B N B M e Gains on acquisition of a subsidiary — (7,685)
HEHEERENSE Loss on disposal of

available-for-sale investments 646 —
MBUIREERAEERED  Gain on early repayment of

& debts of independent investors 5 (10,738) —
AIMEESFNITET ALY Changes in fair value of the

N BENES Derivative component of

the Convertible Bonds 30 4,767 —
2,443,336 1,697,809
TET e & FRIA A G N Increase in prepaid land lease payments (285,240) (340,190)
FERL Decrease in inventories — 1,032
fEkagasE7E: bl Increase in properties under development (3,093,047) (3,065,490)
ERTRIEEENMEN (Increase)/decrease in completed

(), F properties held for sale (973,808) 1,839,755
JELBZT thEE’]i hn Increase in trade receivables (752,345) (439,986)
TERFIE -~ =e R HMER Increase in prepayments,

A E’J 30 deposits and other receivables 3,683 1,594,956

2014 £ E {5 Annual Report 2014 @
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS

HE-_ZT—WWF+-_A=+—HIFE Year ended 31 December 2014

—F-mF —B-=F
2014 2013
it &t AR®F AR Fx
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
FEUR & AR A R Y Decrease in an amount due
SKIB Y, D from the ultimate holding company — 16
JE LB & R )Y SRIE /Y 3E N Increase in an amount due
from an associate (151,900) (6,330)
& UL ZE = A FRIE R Decrease in amounts due from directors — 3,437
JERTE ST, (KL ) Increase/(decrease) in trade payables 1,118,109 (511,273)
H b JE S 308 K FERTSRIE R Increase/(decrease) in other
#a0, Crd) payables and accruals 1,688,006 (45,396)
JE < 2 =B /) FRIE A9 38 00 Increase in an amount due to a director — 1,006
PR IR 177 A9 hi Increase in restricted bank deposits 26 (745,765) (1,048,784)
FEEFEANRE Cash used in operations (748,971) (319,438)
2 F B Interest received 17,900 9,574
B F B Interest paid (1,027,664) (614,545)
[EARETS %Fﬁ S Corporate income tax paid (421,126) (301,573)
BT 3B E R Land appreciation tax paid (276,599) (230,563)
KESEENF MRS REES  Net cash flows used in operating activities (2,456,460) (1,456,545)
RETHHEBHNRERE CASH FLOWS FROM
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
EEME BELXEBEE Purchases of items of property,
plant and equipment (49,429) (204,067)
HEMHEHEIRENATSKIE  Proceeds from sale of
available-for-sales investments 2,454 —
HEWE  BEMXHEEE Proceeds from disposal of items of
K TS ?K property, plant and equipment 2,432 464
W B B B A Acquisition of subsidiaries — (2,500)
I BE B B A ﬁJ (T MEB—TEE ) Acquisition of subsidiaries that
are not business = (251,004)
W B JEYE R RE Acquisition of non-controlling interests — (473,988)
& BB A A Disposal of subsidiaries — (3,682)
KEEZHERAMIRES REFE  Net cash flows used in investing activities (44,543) (934,777)
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2014 2013
[t 5% AR®Fx AR Fr
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
METBHFENRASRE CASH FLOWS FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
EEREEHHE Contribution from non-controlling interests 189,990 10,000
R EEER AT Increase in an amount due from
B X IE B 38 0 the immediate holding company — (20,975)
AR EHBITRTSRIE Proceeds from issue of Convertible Bonds 30 306,213 —
FTIgIRITE R R EAME R New bank loans and other borrowings 7,287,023 5,635,187
IRITER R EMERAER Repayment of bank loans
and other borrowings (3,965,192) (3,603,752)
MBIREEEEAR Repayment of debts to
independent investors (510,509) —
% B 7k Dividend distribution (188,486) —
HohERERF Proceeds from partial disposal of
(3 4 2 45 ) 4 ) subsidiaries without loss of control
®) TS 508 375,010 —
f& 7 BT ETS RIB 58 Net proceeds from issue of shares — 1,164,263
MEFHELEANBERE Net cash flows generated from
financing activities 3,494,049 3,184,723
REeRBESESEYEMF NET INCREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS 993,046 793,401
FMHReRBEEEY Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of the year 1,721,481 936,446
[EXRFBNTE  FEE Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net 11,210 (8,366)
FRESRREZEY CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF THE YEAR 2,725,737 1,721,481
ReRBESEBYHEHS ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
e RIRTTHE S Cash and bank balances 26 5,417,585 3,667,564
W R BIERITE K Less: Restricted bank deposits 26 (2,691,848) (1,946,083)
HERIBEEEY Cash and cash equivalents 26 2,725,737 1,721,481
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—E-NF =%
2014 2013
it &% AR¥FT AR¥Fx
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
RBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
W - BB MEHE Property, plant and equipment 14 4,882 361
WERWEBRF] Investment in subsidiaries 17 — —
IRBEERE Total non-current assets 4,882 361
REBEE CURRENT ASSETS
TERNRIE - me REM Prepayments, deposits and
FE W F IR other receivables 357 273
JFE U BT B8 A B Ry SRIE Amounts due from subsidiaries 17 4,852,915 1,356,235
SR HISRITIF IR Restricted bank deposits 26 1,282 —
RBekREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 26 150,011 785,876
MENEEETE Total current assets 5,004,565 2,142,384
REAE CURRENT LIABILITIES
H b B 5 08 K FE 5T SRR Other payables and accruals 148,465 546,894
JEE <) BT B8 2 ) A 3R IE Amounts due to subsidiaries 17 127,887 116,133
mEBEETE Total current liabilities 276,352 663,027
REBEEFHE NET CURRENT ASSETS 4,728,213 1,479,357
EERAERRBAE TOTAL ASSETS LESS
CURRENT LIABILITIES 4,733,095 1,479,718
FREBEE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
FHERITER R EAMBER Interest-bearing bank loans
and other borrowings 29 3,316,642 —
AT ES Convertible bonds 30 318,105 —
IERE B EREE Total non-current liabilities 3,634,747 —
FEE Net assets 1,098,348 1,479,718
= EQUITY
&7 Share capital 31 135,778 135,778
G Reserves 33 715,435 1,155,454
EEAARE Proposed final dividend 12 247,135 188,486
1,098,348 1,479,718
iy +ER
Shum Chiu Hung Niu Ji Min
EE EE
Director Director

Q@ B R E ARG R A 8 Times Property Holdings Limited
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LFEEH
ARARARZZEE+LF+—ATHARE
HEBREF2EQNTEZRHAESRET
ML AE—HERREEREALF @ &
T8 A Times Property (Holdings) Co.,
Limited e BRBER-_ZEZENF—H=+1HX
HRBHW—IBEINAZE  ARaNA
8 B Times Property (Holdings) Co.,
Limited # & R K EZKR B R Q
Al P EE A Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands °

AR/ —EREERRATF - RAFE
N ARANME AR EREARKM
BFEDEIEREWERE  WxH
ERMEER -

EEZRA ARAMNEEREZERRAB IR
REARARRE((RBARRES DE
MRZWEEEEARAR(NEER])
AR ERERARIRAEBEBARES
FEMRIMNERREERAF(ERE
Bl ERREBANKEAINAZSSLH
FE(ZSEREN2ERE -

RKANRIBRHOR_ZE—=F+=-_A+—H
EBEBBMERIMBRARERLET °

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 14
November 2007 under the name of Times Property (Holdings)
Co., Limited as an exempted company with limited liability
under the Companies Law, Cap 22 of the Cayman Islands.
Pursuant to a special resolution passed on 24 January 2008,
the Company’s name was changed from Times Property
(Holdings) Co., Limited to Times Property Holdings Limited.
The registered office address is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
P.0O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company. During
the year, the Company’s subsidiaries were mainly involved
in property development, property leasing and property
management in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

In the opinion of the directors, the immediate holding company
of the Company is Asiaciti Enterprises Ltd. (“Asiaciti”), which
was incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”) and the
ultimate holding company is Renowned Brand Investments
Limited (“Renowned Brand”), which was incorporated in BVI.
Renowned Brand is wholly owned by Mr. Shum Chiu Hung
(“Mr. Shum”), the Founder of the Group.

The Company’s shares were listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 11 December 2013.
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2.1 REEE 2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION
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The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) (which comprise all
International Financial Reporting Standards, International
Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and Interpretations) issued
by the International Accounting Standards Boards Committee
and accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.
These consolidated financial statements also comply with
the applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance relating to the preparation of financial
statements, which for this financial year and the comparative
period continue to be those of the predecessor Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 32), in accordance with transitional and
saving arrangements for Part 9 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622), “Accounts and Audit”, which are set
out in Sections 76 to 87 of Schedule 11 to that Ordinance.
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except for investment
properties, the embedded financial derivative component of the
Convertible Bonds and certain available-for-sale investments,
which have been measured at fair value. The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) and
all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONT’D)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2014. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-
group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control described in
the accounting policy for subsidiaries below. A change in the
ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and
(iii) the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received,
(ii) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share
of components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised standards and
new interpretation for the first time for the current year’s
financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 10, Investment Entities
[FRS 12 and IAS 27 (2011)

Amendments to IAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of
Hedge Accounting

IFRIC21 Levies

Amendments to 1AS 39

Amendments to IFRS 2
included in Annual
improvements 2010-2012
Cycle

Definition of Vesting Condition*

Amendments to IFRS 3
included in Annual
improvements 2010-2012
Cycle

Accounting for Contingent Consideration
in a Business Combination'

Amendments fo IFRS 13 Short-term Receivable and Payables
included in Annual
improvements 2010-2012
Cycle

Amendments to IFRS 1
included in Annual
improvements 2011-2013
Cycle

Meaning of Effective IFRSS

1 Effective from 1 July 2014

The adoption of the revised standards and new interpretation
has had no significant financial effect on these financial
statements.
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2.3 NEW AND REVISED IFRSs AND

NEW DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS
UNDER THE HONGKONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE NOT YET ADOPTED

IFRS9

Amendments to IFRS 10
and IAS 28

Amendments to IFRS 11

IFRS 14

IFRS 15

Amendments to IAS 16
and IAS 38

Amendments to IAS 16

and IAS 41

Amendments to IAS 19

Amendments to IAS 27

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IFRS 10,

IFRS 12 and 1AS 28 (2011)

Annual Improvements
2010-2012 Cycle

Annual Improvements
2011-2013 Cycle

Annual Improvements
2012-2014 Cycle

Financial Instruments*

Sales or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture?

Accounting for Acquisitions of interests in Joint Operation®
Regulatory Deferral Accounts®
Revenue from Contracts with Customers®

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisatior?

Agriculture: Bearer Plants?

Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions®
Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements®
Discourse Inititative?

Investment entities: Applying the consolidation Exception?

Amendments to a number of IFRSs'

Amendments to a number of IFRSs'

Amendments to a number of IFRSs?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

5 Effective for an entity that first adopts IFRSs for its annual financial
statements beginning on or after 1 January 2016 and therefore is not
applicable to the Group
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2.3

2.4

NEW AND REVISED IFRSs AND NEW
DISCLOSURE UNDER THE HONG KONG
COMPANIES ORDINANCE NOT YET
ADOPTED (CONT'D)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the
impact of these new and revised IFRSs upon initial application.
So far, the Group considers that these new and revised IFRSs
may result in changes in accounting policies but are unlikely to
have a significant impact on the Group’s results of operations
and financial position.

In addition, the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622) will affect the presentation and disclosure of certain
information in the consolidated financial statements for the
year ending 31 December 2015. The Group is in the process of
making assessment of the impact of these change.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly
or indirectly controlled by the Company. Control is achieved
when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e.,
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
statement of profit or loss to the extent of dividends received
and receivable. The Company’s investments in subsidiaries that
are not classified as held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5
Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations
are stated at cost less any impairment losses.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’'D)

Investment in associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting
rights and over which it is in a position to exercise significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but
is not control or joint control over those policies.

The Group’s investments in associates are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group's
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting, less
any impairment losses.

Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar
accounting policies that may exist.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates is included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated
other comprehensive income, respectively. In addition, when
there has been a change recognised directly in the equity of
the associate, the Group recognises its share of any changes,
when applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s investments in the associates, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of
the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of
associates is included as part of the Group’s investments in
associates.

The results of associates are included in the Company’s
statement of profit or loss to the extent of dividends received
and receivable. The Company’s investments in associates are
treated as non-current assets and are stated at cost less any
impairment losses.

When an investment in an associate is classified as held for
sale, it is accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination, the
Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests
in the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the event
of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification
and designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded
derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition
date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial
instrument and within the scope of IAS 39 is measured at fair
value with changes in fair value either recognised in profit or
loss or as a change to other comprehensive income. If the
contingent consideration is not within the scope of IAS 39,
it is measured in accordance with the appropriate IFRSs.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’'D)

Business combinations and goodwill (Cont’d)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree over
the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities assumed.
If the sum of this consideration and other items is lower than
the fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of
goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group
are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to
which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less
than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised.
An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured
based on the relative value of the operation disposed of and the
portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties, the embedded
financial derivative component of the Convertible Bonds and
certain available-for-sale investments at fair value at the end
of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that would
be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market
for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market,
in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability
is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.



2.4 FESHBKREE(E) 2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’'D)

AREEFE(E) Fair value measurement (Cont’d)
FIEAREBEREAMBRERTENIEE All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
MEERBENERES AL EBEENTEER disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
EBmMEBEANREER ABBEZUAT fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
AREBEERDE level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole:
F—h— EREREESABERERT Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
HHRE(REHAR) markets for identical assets or liabilities
EFERH - EREY AR BEFAEMEBE Level 2— based on valuation techniques for which the
AMAER(EELMHE) &K lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
[ ABIENGESE measurement is observable, either directly or
indirectly
F=H—- ERNE AR BEEAENEEBE Level 3— based on valuation techniques for which the
RNHET 0] B & 1K 2 ) A 2UR lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
R h1E 75 0% measurement is unobservable
MELCEFHEEERNAUBRERERNE For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
ERBEME  FA5EEBRSREDN statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
REFTHDE(ERE AR EEFTER transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
ENMEBEANREEH ABE) BT reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that
BEETRFRER - is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the

end of each reporting period.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, properties under development, completed
properties held for sale, prepaid land lease payments, financial
assets, investment properties and deferred tax assets), the
asset's recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit's
value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in which it
arises in those expense categories consistent with the function
of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period
as to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an
asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net of
any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss in the period in which it arises, unless the asset
is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of
the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the
relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

or

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii)  is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a); and

(vii) a person identified in (a) (i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

2014 £ E R & Annual Report 2014 ®<>



R 7% R A B ot
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ZZ—F+=H=+—H 31 December 2014

2.4 FESHHFREE(E) 2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

M BERRBRITE

BRI TIRIASN - W2 - BFE RRER
AR REH T E RERBREBEZS -
ME BEERBRBZKABRERER
BEE RREAEEEEZHEZERR
R EERE MG MES 2 EMEEE
R

ME - BEMRBREBRERMELEZ
Xt PlingEREE  BERELEX
HEIEFAGRAERR  ENAERE
AMBRT  TERENIHEERE
E REERHZBEPELR L - WY
X BEARENIERLIAIKE
B AXEEEBABE ERSER
BE EREAOAERFHREIT
.

7 8 75452 5L 1 51 T 08 PR 4F A A
WENE BERSBERZAAEE
FAEESE - BUTRAZ B4 =
mF

HE it g F 4.75%

HEMEEKE REEH R 20%
ZEEE

Bl RERBAE 19%

Bgi]

T 19%

HWHx BMERXEERBZEHSBEL
RAERFESR  BBBER ZKAKR
EWMOZABEERIE  MEHIBHE
BRIHTE - FREE - AT EAFH LI
EZ2VANSHRFEEFHEA T AR
A WEREB(IER) -

<>® B R E ARG R A 8 Times Property Holdings Limited

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.
In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts
of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets
with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal
annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold land and buildings 4.75%
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of
the lease terms and 20%
Furniture, fixtures and
office equipment 19%
Motor vehicles 19%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’'D)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Cont'd)

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents leasehold improvements
under construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs
of construction and capitalised borrowing costs on related
borrowed funds during the period of construction. Construction
in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of property,
plant and equipment when completed and ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interest in land and buildings held
to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or both, rather
than for use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course
of business. Such properties are measured initially at cost,
including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at fair value, which reflects
market conditions at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the year in which they arise.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Investment properties (Cont’d)

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of investment
properties are recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied
properties, the deemed cost of a property for subsequent
accounting is its fair value at the date of change in use. If a
property occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied property
becomes an investment property, the Group accounts for such
property in accordance with the policy stated under “Property,
plant and equipment and depreciation” up to the date of
change in use, and any difference at that date between the
carrying amount and the fair value of the property is accounted
for as a revaluation in accordance with the policy stated under
“Property, plant and equipment and depreciation” above.

Leases

Leases, including subleases, where substantially all the rewards
and risks of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases.

Where the Group is the lessor, for those assets owned by the
Group under operating leases, they are included in the non-
current assets and rentals receivable under the operating
leases derived from lease and sublease arrangement are
credited to the consolidated statement of profit or loss on
the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the Group
is the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases net of
any incentives received from the lessor are charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’'D)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables
and available-for-sale financial investments, as appropriate.
When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured
at fair value plus transaction costs that are attributable to
the acquisition of the financial assets, except in the case of
financial assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

The Group only had financial assets classified as “loans and
receivables” and “available-for-sale financial investments”
during the years.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. After initial measurement, such assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or
costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in other income
and gains in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. The
loss arising from impairment is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in finance costs for loans and in other
expenses for receivables.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Investments and other financial assets (Cont’d)

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative
financial assets in listed and unlisted equity investments and
debt securities. Equity investments classified as available for
sale are those which are neither classified as held for trading
nor designated as at fair value through profit or loss. Debt
securities in this category are those which are intended to be
held for an indefinite period of time and which may be sold
in response to needs for liquidity or in response to changes in
market conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments
are subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised
gains or losses recognised as other comprehensive income in
the available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve until the
investment is derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain
or loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss in other income and gains, or until the investment is
determined to be impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss is
reclassified from the available-for-sale investment revaluation
reserve to the consolidated statement of profit or loss in other
expenses. Interest earned whilst holding the available-for-
sale financial investments is reported as interest income and
is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
as other income in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot be
reliably measured because (a) the variability in the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that investment
or (b) the probabilities of the various estimates within the range
cannot be reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair
value, such investments are stated at cost less any impairment
losses.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’'D)

Investments and other financial assets (Cont’d)

Available-for-sale financial investments (Cont’d)

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell
its available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are
still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group is
unable to trade these financial assets due to inactive markets,
the Group may elect to reclassify these financial assets if
management has the ability and intention to hold the assets for
the foreseeable future or until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-
sale category, the fair value carrying amount at the date of
reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and any
previous gain or loss on that asset that has been recognised
in equity is amortised to profit or loss over the remaining life of
the investment using the effective interest rate. Any difference
between the new amortised cost and the maturity amount is
also amortised over the remaining life of the asset using the
effective interest rate. If the asset is subsequently determined to
be impaired, then the amount recorded in equity is reclassified
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or
° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows

from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and
either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of
the asset.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Derecognition of financial assets (Cont’d)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risk
and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration
that the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the asset have an impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that a debtor
or a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation and observable data indicating
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future
cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions
that correlate with defaults.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’'D)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for
an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant
or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses
them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues
to be, recognised are not included in a collective assessment of
impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The present
value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the
use of an allowance account and the loss is recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Interest income
continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount and
is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the future
cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.
Loans and receivables together with any associated allowance
are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future
recovery and all collateral has been realised or has been
transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by
adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is later recovered,
the recovery is credited to administrative expenses in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried
at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured,
or on a derivative asset that is linked to and must be settled by
delivery of such an unquoted equity instrument, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for
a similar financial asset. Impairment losses on these assets are
not reversed.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses
at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that an investment or a group of investments is
impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment
and amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment
loss previously recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss, is removed from other comprehensive income
and recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available
for sale, objective evidence would include a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment below
its cost. “Significant” is evaluated against the original cost of
the investment and “prolonged” against the period in which
the fair value has been below its original cost. Where there is
evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as
the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss — is
removed from other comprehensive income and recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’'D)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

Available-for-sale financial investments (Cont’d)

Impairment losses on equity instruments classified as available
for sale are not reversed through the consolidated statement of
profit or loss. Increases in their fair value after impairment are
recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged”
required judgement. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates, among other factors, the duration or extent to which
the fair value of an investment is less than its cost.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as

financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss or loans
and other borrowings.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and,
in the case of loans and other borrowings, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables and interest-bearing bank loans and other borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss represent
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss are designated as at the date of
initial recognition and only if the criteria in IAS 39 are satisfied.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Financial liabilities (Cont’d)

Subsequent measurement (Cont’d)
Loans and other borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and other
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest rate method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated
at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised
as well as through the effective interest rate amortisation
process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse
the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor
fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract is
recognised initially as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance
of the guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group
measures the financial guarantee contract at the higher of: (i)
the amount of the best estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period;
and (ii) the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate,
cumulative amortisation.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’'D)

Financial liabilities (Cont’d)

Subsequent measurement (Cont’d)
Convertible bonds

If the conversion option of convertible bonds exhibits
characteristics of an embedded financial derivative, it is
separated from its debt component. On initial recognition, the
derivative component of the convertible bonds is measured
at fair value and presented as part of derivative financial
instruments. Any excess of proceeds over the amount initially
recognised as the derivative component is recognised as the
debt component. Transaction costs are apportioned between
the debt and derivative components of the convertible bonds
based on the allocation of proceeds to the debt and derivative
components when the instruments are initially recognised. The
portion of the transaction costs relating to the debt component
is recognised initially as part of the debt. The portion relating
to the derivative component is recognised immediately in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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<>® B R E ARG R A 8 Times Property Holdings Limited

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Prepaid land lease payments

Prepaid land lease payments, representing prepayments for
leasehold land for development for future sale in the ordinary
course of business, are stated at lower of cost and net
realisable value, of which those within normal operating cycle
are classified as current assets, while those out of the normal
operating cycle are classified as non-current assets.

Properties under development

Properties under development are intended to be held for sale
after completion.

Properties under development are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value and comprise land costs, construction
costs, borrowing costs, professional fees and other costs
directly attributable to such properties incurred during the
development period.

Properties under development are classified as current
assets unless the construction period of the relevant property
development project is expected to be beyond the normal
operating cycle. On completion, the properties are transferred
to completed properties held for sale.

Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties held for sale are stated at the lower
of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined by an
apportionment of the total land and buildings costs attributable
to unsold properties. Net realisable value takes into account the
price ultimately expected to be realised, less estimated costs to
be incurred in selling the properties.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’'D)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statements of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in
nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.

Retirement benefit scheme

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China
are required to participate in a central pension scheme
operated by the local municipal government. The PRC
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage
of their payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The
contributions are charged to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the central pension scheme.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and associates, when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’'D)

Income tax (Cont’d)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end
of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the
same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Revenue recognition

Revenue from the sale of properties in the ordinary course of
business is recognised when all the following criteria are met:

(@)  the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
properties are transferred to purchasers;

(b)  neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership, nor effective control
over the properties are retained;

(c)  the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

(d) itis probable that the economic benefits associated with
the transaction will flow to the Group; and

(e)  the cost incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

For the Group, revenue from the sale of completed properties
is recognised upon the signing of the property handover letter,
which is taken to be the point in time when the risks and
rewards of ownership of the property have been passed to the
buyer.

Deposits and instalments received in respect of properties
sold prior to the date of revenue recognition are included in
the consolidated statement of financial position under current
liabilities.

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over
the lease terms.

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Property management fee income is recognised when the
services are rendered and the inflow of economic benefits is
probable.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’'D)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other
costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a
separate allocation of retained profits within the equity section
of the consolidated statement of financial position, until they
have been approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
When these dividends have been approved by the shareholders
and declared, they are recognised as a liability.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB, which is
the Group’s presentation currency. The functional currency
of the Company is Hong Kong dollars while RMB is used as
the presentation currency of the financial statements of the
Company for the purpose of aligning with the presentation
currency of the Group. Each entity in the Group determines
its own functional currency and items included in the
financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded
by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a
non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with
the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the
item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value
gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income
or profit or loss, respectively).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’'D)

Foreign currencies (Cont’d)

The functional currencies of certain subsidiaries operating
outside the Mainland China are currencies other than RMB. As
at the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of
these entities are translated into the presentation currency of
the Company at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their statements of comprehensive income
are translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year. The resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive income
relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of non-PRC entities are translated into RMB
at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows.
Frequently recurring cash flows of non-PRC entities which arise
throughout the year are translated into RMB at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.
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JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (CONT'D)

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the Consolidated financial
statements:

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its
investment properties portfolio. The Group has determined,
based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the
arrangements, that it retains all the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of these properties which are leased out
on operating leases.

Classification between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making that
judgement. Investment properties are properties held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group
considers whether a property generates cash flows largely
independently of the other assets held by the Group.

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals
or for capital appreciation and another portion that is held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold
separately or leased out separately under a finance lease, the
Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions
could not be sold separately, the property is an investment
property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes.

Judgement is made on an individual property basis to
determine whether ancillary services are so significant that a
property does not qualify as an investment property.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (CONT'’D)

Judgements (Cont’d)

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities arising
from investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the management of the Group has reviewed the
Group's investment properties and concluded that the Group’s
investment properties are held under a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment properties over time.
Therefore, in determining the Group’s deferred taxation on
investment properties, the directors have determined that the
presumption that investment properties measured using the
fair value model are recovered through sale is rebutted.

Accordingly, the Group recognises deferred tax in respect
of the changes in fair value of the investment properties
based on management’s best estimate assuming future tax
consequences through usage of such properties for rental
purpose, rather than through sale. The final tax outcome
could be different from the deferred tax liabilities recognised
in the consolidated financial statements should the investment
properties are subsequently disposed of by the Group, rather
than all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
properties are consumed substantially by leasing over time. In
the event the investment properties are being disposed of, the
Group may be liable to higher tax upon disposal considering
the impact of corporate income tax and land appreciation tax.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (CONT'D)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

(a) PRC corporate income tax

The Group is subject to corporate income taxes in
Mainland China. Due to the fact that certain matters
relating to the income taxes have not been confirmed by
the local tax bureau, objective estimate and judgement
based on currently enacted tax laws, regulations and
other related policies are required in determining the
provision for income taxes to be made. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts originally recorded, the differences will
impact on the income tax and tax provision in the period
in which the differences realise. Further details are
given in notes 10 and 25 to the consolidated financial
statements.

(b)  PRC land appreciation tax

The Group is subject to land appreciation tax in
Mainland China. The provision for land appreciation tax
is based on management’s best estimates according
to its understanding of the requirements set forth in
the relevant PRC tax laws and regulations. The actual
land appreciation tax liabilities are subject to the
determination by the tax authorities upon the completion
of the property development projects. The Group has
not finalised its land appreciation tax calculations and
payments with the tax authorities for certain property
development projects.

The final outcome could be different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, and any differences will
impact the land appreciation tax expenses and the
related provision in the period in which the differences
realise. Further details are given in notes 10 and 25 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (CONT'’D)

BT TR ERE(HE) Estimation uncertainty (Cont’d)

(c) PEBEHEEE (c) Deferred tax assets
REAHEBEEELRTELRE Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses
ABAERAAEEBEENBRT to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
FUERABEEMREEE - EX be available against which the losses can be utilised.
EIEEHE ERBIERKRERE Significant management judgement is required to
A B B BT B BE R A1 K S DA KR AR determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can
W BRERE BT THER be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of
RIELERIEEENSRE future taxable profits together with future tax planning
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properties under development

Development costs of properties are recorded as
properties under development during the construction
stage and will be transferred to completed properties
held for sale upon completion. Apportionment of
these costs will be recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss upon the recognition of the
sale of the properties. Before the final settlement of the
development costs and other costs relating to the sale
of the properties, these costs are accrued by the Group
based on management'’s best estimate.

When developing properties, the Group may divide the
development projects into phases. Specific costs directly
related to the development of a phase are recorded
as the cost of such phase. Costs that are common to
phases are allocated to individual phases based on the
estimated saleable area of the entire project.

Where the final settlement of costs and the related cost
allocation is different from the initial estimates, any
increase or decrease in the development costs and other
costs would affect the profit or loss in future years.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (CONT'D)

Estimation uncertainty (Cont’d)

(e)  Estimation of fair value of investment properties

In the absence of current prices in an active market for
similar properties, the Group considers information from
a variety of sources, including:

(i) current prices in an active market for properties of
a different nature, condition or location, adjusted
to reflect those differences;

(i) recent prices of similar properties on less active
markets, with adjustments to reflect any changes
in economic conditions since the dates of the
transactions that occurred at those prices; and

(iii)  discounted cash flow projections based on reliable
estimates of future cash flows, supported by the
terms of any existing lease and other contracts
and (when possible) by external evidence such as
current market rents for similar properties in the
same location and condition, and using discount
rates.

Further details, including the key assumptions used for fair
value measurement, are given in note 16 to the financial
statements.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into the
following reportable operating segments:

(@)  Property development: Development and sale of
properties
(b)  Property leasing: Property leasing (including

lease of self-owned
properties and sublease of
leased properties)

(c)  Property management: Provision of property and
hotel management services

(d)  Others: Supermarket operation, an
incidental and non-core
business of the Group*

# Foshan Zhide Wangu Supermarket Co., Ltd, the subsidiary of the Group
operating the supermarket, was disposed of in the first quarter of 2013.

The property development projects undertaken by the Group
during the year were all located in the PRC.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resources allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit
or loss, which is a measure of adjusted profit or loss before tax.
The adjusted profit or loss before tax is measured consistently
with the Group’s profit before tax except that interest income,
finance costs, share of profits and losses of associates, as
well as head office and corporate income and expenses are
excluded from this measurement.

The Group's revenue from external customers is derived solely
from its operations in the PRC, and no non-current assets of
the Group are located outside the PRC.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets, tax prepayments,
available-for-sale investments, restricted bank deposits, cash
and cash equivalents and other unallocated head office and
corporate assets as these assets are managed on a group
basis.

Segment liabilities exclude tax payable, deferred tax liabilities,
interest-bearing bank loans and other borrowings, Convertible
Bonds and other unallocated head office and corporate
liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a group basis.
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4. BESBEHE) 4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(CONT'D)
During the year, no revenue from transactions with a single

external customer amounted to 10% or more of the Group's
total revenue.

FR BEREESIIBELPRIOK
AEAREE LKA L0% I L -

ek MERE MEER Y
BEE-Z—MNE Year ended Property Property Property
+tZA=1+—HLEE 31 December 2014 development leasing management Total
ARMTFT AR¥Fn AR¥Frn AR%Tx
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
2EWA Segment revenue
IBEFEHE Sales to external customers 10,094,519 196,545 127,884 10,418,948
DEEE Segment results 2,402,009 72,299 (2,002) 2,472,306
#ER - Reconciliation:
M EUWA Interest income 17,900
ANMMEEST Unallocated corporate expense (27,594)
AR A Finance costs (231,959)
i =N E Share of profits and losses of associates 4,160
BR B A1 A1) Profit before tax 2,234,813
PTHEE Segment assets 24,569,232 2,296,916 23,110 26,889,258
HER - Reconciliation:
RAOENEE Unallocated assets 6,195,294
BEEBEE Total assets 33,084,552
PHEE Segment liabilities 13,909,081 274,437 89,893 14,273,411
#E - Reconciliation:
AOEMNEE Unallocated liabilities 13,094,086
BELE Total liabilities 27,367,497
HitpHER Other segment information
neE Depreciation (18,804) (42,390) (320) (61,514)
KEYMED Fair value gains on
N EERE investment properties — 57,800 — 57,800
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4. BEHBEHGE)

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(CONT’'D)
MR E WMERE MEE R Hith st
BHE-_ZT—=F Year ended Property Property Property
+-B=+—HBI-%¥Z 31 December 2013 development leasing  management Others Total
ARETT AREFTT AR®FT AREFT AREFTL
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AW A Segment revenue
IBEPHEE Sales to external customers 9,443,320 154,412 97,003 — 9,694,735
DEEE Segment results 1,707,737 30,856 4,990 676 1,744,259
#HE Reconciliation:
FEHA Interest income 9574
AAEHEET T Unallocated corporate expense (48,368)
B & AR Finance costs (87,706)
JE 1 Share of profits and
NAEE losses of associates 2371
B % A1 B Profit before tax 1,620,130
THEE Segment assets 18,540,619 2,185,019 20,876 — 20,746,514
B - Reconciliation:
AOEMEE Unallocated assets 4,093,264
BERH Total assets 24,839,778
PBEE Segment liabilities 11,506,794 247 485 52,384 — 11,806,663
#HE Reconciliation:
ADERNEE Unallocated liabilities 9,024,694
aEes Total liabilities 20,831,357
Hitt o HER Other segment information
nE Depreciation (14,529) (40,853) (266) — (55,648)
REMER Fair value gains on
DR EERE investment properties — 42,000 — — 42,000
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5. ItA ~ Rttt A R &2 5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
WA ABEREBENEXEB)EFAHEE Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the
MEMSHRIELE DR ERERHEE gross proceeds from the sale of properties, gross rental income
WABBEARMEERBWA (KR E 2 received and receivables and property management fee
K InE) - income, net of business tax and surcharges during the year.

AEBUWA - HAb U A Rz 895 #7208 An analysis of the Group’s revenue, other income and gains is
™ as follows:
—E—MF —E—=F
2014 2013
[t &+ AR¥FT ARETFIT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

WA Revenue

LES RS Sale of properties 10,094,519 9,443,320

KE TS EHEEWALLEE  Gross rental income from:

HEBBEME lease of self-owned properties 42,574 40,112
EHEEYE sublease of leased properties 153,971 114,300
YESEERA Property management fee income 127,884 97,003
10,418,948 9,694,735

H g A Other income

AT R B M A Bank interest income 17,900 6,435

H b F) 2 YA Other interest income — 3,139

HAth Others 11,374 8,310

29,274 17,884

W 75 F R Gains, net

Ue BB B BB~ A 2 Uk & Gain on acquisition of a subsidiary — 7,685

HEW B QAR Uk Gain on disposal of subsidiaries — 1,414

HEMENR A EBEKSE Fair value gains on investment properties 16 57,800 42,000

SNEU E - R A Foreign exchange gain, net 6,714 9,717

REEERNEILIEESE Gain on early repayment of debts to

EBEUE (KIE) independent investors (note) 10,738 —
75,252 60,816
104,526 78,700
Mzt . R-ZT—E— AN AATHERETEIR Note:  On 6 January 2014, the Company settled all outstanding instalments
A SEARNBE TN AERED BN under the restructuring deed dated 12 July 2013 entered into by and
P BEHARNTIHARA - B ML E & among the Company, Mr. Shum, Asiaciti, Renowned Brand, East
o ERERE - BRFEEARA A KHighup Profit Management Limited and Highup Holdings Limited in full ahead
Holdings Limited 2R =ZZ—=F+tA+= of the repayment schedule, the details of which were set out in the
HE: BRI AR ESEeN - announcement made by the board of directors of the Company on 7
—E—-ALBAEEHAER - January 2014.
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6. RR¥RAIFIE

AEBEOBBAFBEMR,(GFA)T

6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/

Y& IE - (crediting):
—E-mEF —E—=F
2014 2013
&+ AR%Fx ARMTFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B EWENRAR Cost of properties sold 7,006,867 7,201,640
eI EMEZ Direct operating expenses (including repairs
HELERAE and maintenance) arising on rental-
(BREFERRE) earning investment properties 3,146 3,922
EHEER BEELE Direct operating expenses (including rental
X (BEEsAREE and depreciation of leasehold
WMERERE) improvements) arising on the
subleasing business 102,154 69,674
R EER R 2 KR Cost of property management
service provided 120,472 81,140
e Depreciation 14 61,514 55,648
HEWMERRBENES Changes in fair value of
investment properties 16 (57,800) (42,000)
1% SR i B Auditors’ remuneration 4,911 3,588
BIRMAZ(TERIEES Employee benefit expense (excluding
HEN(HEES)) - directors’ remuneration (note 8)):
e Wages and salaries 299,462 229,223
RIKREFEIMHR Pension scheme contributions 13,408 13,039
B FERYEZERIEEE  Less: Amount capitalised in properties
under development (166,176) (148,894)
146,694 93,368
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6. FRIRATFIE(E)

6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (CONT'D)

—E-NF —E—=F
2014 2013
[t 5% AR®F ARETFIT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
PAEYMEREHEBLD Minimum lease payments under operating
MEMEZEZEHE leases regarding office premises and
HIKHEERE leased properties for the
subleasing business 90,906 81,318
ERTIHRIEEENMEN Reversal of impairment of completed

T E properties held for sale 21 — (1,665)
FENRIE - ke REHMER Reversal of impairment of prepayments,

HIBRREE D deposits and other receivables — (1,000)
HEWE  BEMEE Loss on disposal of items of property,

HE BB plant and equipment 235 34
W B T B A Rl e Gain on acquisition of a subsidiary — (7,685)
REEBERNBEURES Gain on early repayment of debts

Y & T8 A UK 2 to Independent investors (10,738) —
KEMERLSW AR EELZ  Rental income on investment properties less

Fﬁﬁii\ﬁﬁﬁ% 146,000 7T direct operating expenses of

—E—=4F: RMB3,146,000 (2013: RMB3,922,000)

/\Eﬁfﬁ:% 922,000 7T) (39,428) (36,190)
A HEREN AR BERIE  Fair value loss on available-for-sale

(RO EREREAEZ) investments (transfer from

equity on disposal) 646 —
AIMBEEFITETESS D Fair value loss on derivative component
NAEEEE of the Convertible Bonds 30 4,767 —

<>@ B R E ARG R A 8 Times Property Holdings Limited



7. MEBERE

7. FINANCE COSTS

—F-mF —T=%F

2014 2013

AR¥FT ARETFIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

BRI Interest expense 1,189,069 612,016
B BRI E Less: Interest capitalised (957,110) (524,310)
231,959 87,706

8. EFHM

BRBXAIREFLTRARFER
AlGRPI(FEE22E )M R11FE78F K E

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Main Board of

ZEEHFMAT the SEHK and Section 78 of Schedule 11 to the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) is as follows:

—F-NF —F—=
2014 2013
AR¥FT ARKFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
e Fees 720 60

Hiii& - Other emoluments:

e EUMREDIZ Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 10,781 7,046
FIRBMATEAT Performance-related bonuses 20,874 13,451
R SR Pension scheme contributions 77 73
31,732 20,570
32,452 20,630
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ZZ—F+=H=+—H 31 December 2014

8. EHHBM(#E) 8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (CONT'D)
(a) BIUFHTES (@) Independent non-executive directors
FAEZINTFTEIIIERTES 2 The fees paid to independent non-executive directors
MEWT during the year were as follows:
—E-—gF —E—=F
2014 2013
AR TR AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FEZLT Ms. Sun Hui 240 20
BEX A Mr. Wong Wai Man 240 20
BEREET(RE—NF Dr. Wong Kennedy, Ying Ho
ZAZ+—BEZE) (Appointed on 21 March 2014) 180 —
Mas e (KT -4 Mr. Lin Ru Peng (Resigned on 21 March 2014)
=ZAZ+—HEE) 60 20
720 60
FRNUTEEMPS ESHE B There were no other emoluments payable to the
JFHITER(— T —=4F : &|) o independent non-executive directors during the year
(2013: Nil).
(b) #HITE=E (b) Executive directors

E A= 3:]
RENNE - REHN BAE

Salaries, TEAL B RLE
allowances  Performance Pension  ¥rEN#2%E
and benefits related scheme Total
in kind bonuses  contributions  remuneration

ARBTRT ARETT AR®Tr ARETrR
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

BE-Z-—OmE Year ended 31 December 2014
+ZA=+—HILEE

B G Mr. Shum 2,786 6,886 9 9,681

RAEE L& Mr. Guan Jianhui 1,861 3,405 13 5,279

AiH L% Mr. Bai Xihong 2,296 3,530 13 5,839

TRk A Mr. Li Qiang 1,432 3,309 14 4,755

IR & Mr. Cen Zhaoxiong 1,385 2,551 14 3,950

GBS EE Mr. Niu Jimin 1,021 1,193 14 2,228
10,781 20,874 77 31,732
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8. EFEHM(E) 8.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (CONT’D)

(b) HITEE(HE) (b) Executive directors (Cont’d)
e o A
LMEWRZ  RIEY Rk®
Salaries, TE4T FHEI R
allowances  Performance Pension e R
and benefits related scheme Total
in kind bonuses  contributions  remuneration
ARMSFIT ARMTT ARBFT ARYTFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
BE-_Z—=F Year ended 31 December 2013
+—A=+—HILEE
iy Mr. Shum 1,968 4,887 8 6,863
REEESE Mr. Guan Jianhui 1,324 1,864 13 3,201
k2P Mr. Bai Xihong 1,323 2,601 13 3,937
e A Mr. Li Qiang 962 2,276 13 3,251
EIRE LA Mr. Cen Zhaoxiong 962 1,214 13 2,189
HERRNE Mr. Niu Jimin 507 609 13 1,129
7,046 13,451 73 20,570

FAMBESTHELARBREL
AEMAOLH(ZE—=F - &) -

There was no arrangement under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the
year (2013: Nil).
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—F—MF+= A=-+—H 31 December 2014

FHMESHILIEESR

FAN - FHESNIEEERENEE
F(ZE—=F  HREF) REFEF
ZHMABEIN EAMTE8 . FA
Fep—w2FMESNFEFR( T —=
F:—ZFEF)EEZHMWFB D BT
T -

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included four
directors (2013: four directors), details of whose remuneration
are set out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration for
the year of the remaining one non-director (2013: one non-
director), highest paid employee during the year, respectively,
are as follows:

—E-DNF —E—=%F

2014 2013

AR¥TFT ARETFIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

Fe - RREREYAR Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 1,657 933
RIBEMTEAL Performance-related bonuses 2,475 2,036
RIKEET B X Pension scheme contributions 14 13
4,146 2,982

10.

<>® B R E ARG R A 8 Times Property Holdings Limited

R — 2 FHERSNIFESREE ZFH M
& E N F AR¥4,000000mEAR
¥ 5,000,000 (ZZE—=%F: AR¥
2,000,000 T E AR ¥ 3,000,000 7T) °

Fris R BAST
AEBEREBEERELSIRRN AL
BRERAMBREEMEREEER
ZHMBHAFEN - REMSHS R
BHEBARBEESRANERY  AEEER
(RNHEEHRELRBHERA TS MK
V)EFHRETAHAEN - ARAEER
AERBYEEEEELEMBHRKA -
At A EBEANEBBRASHR

hEEETEH
REEPBECEABHR(EEMEHR])
HENBRTAR =2BREM  BER
TEAMEEXTENEEMBHERS
FJE P Ah AT B FE AR AR B DAE A AR R &t
o .

BrREM IR E 6 AR R R Bk AR i (E &
RMWELI7)S  FRAKEEFT BRI
B E MM B R RS E BN 25% 8
BEXMERKE - BMNKE - FhHE
MEHBHEAKOERAEREZERLE
Bl BRE B W AR 2.5% = -

10.

The remuneration of the remaining one non-director highest
paid employee fell within the band of RMB4,000,000 to
RMB5,000,000 (2013: RMB2,000,000 to RMB3,000,000).

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profits
arising in or derived from the jurisdictions in which members
of the Group are domiciled and operate. Pursuant to the rules
and regulations of the Cayman Islands and BVI, the entities of
the Group which were incorporated in the Cayman Islands and
BVI are not subject to any income tax. The Group was not liable
for income tax in Hong Kong as the Group did not have any
assessable income arising in Hong Kong during the year.

PRC corporate income tax

The PRC corporate income tax (“CIT”) in respect of operations
in Mainland China has been calculated at the applicable tax
rate on the estimated assessable profits for each of the year,
based on the existing legislation, interpretations and practices
in respect thereof.

Except for Guangzhou Ruixian, Fogang Shengxin and Fogang
Bairui (as defined in note 17), other subsidiaries of the Group
operating in Mainland China are subject to the PRC corporate
income tax rate of 25% during the year. Corporate income tax
for Guangzhou Ruixian, Fogang Shengxin and Fogang Bairui is
levied on a deemed basis on a rate of 2.5% of their respective
revenue amounts.



10.

FRIGIBASZ (18)

o B + 3 8 (B B
RIE-NANAEF—A— BERN(FE
ARKMB L EZERETHR) R
—NANEF-AZTEHERBKPEA
RAMBE T 12 ERE TR B EAR)
MER  APEHEXERER L
REEREFTHREN R ABIHEED
RZFGRERAMEKRAY  BREEE
B B ) S B % S ) 9 R F L 1R
1E30% £ 60% H) R R B L 188
B RMEBEEEENEEINERE S
FIMTIE B 48R 20% - Rl 8 & m
MR -

FAAKERERETBEHREBEEX
P EAR TE A AT L 8 B B I R
e BRI HWBENEERNYEFARE
BRTREHEBHEEET - MBI
BEEMTHIREN R EFTE L IEER
BERERBENEERMEOA -

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONT’D)

PRC land appreciation tax

According to the requirements of the Provisional Regulations of
the PRC on Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT”) (FFZE AR FAE
+ IR E T Z1TEM) effective from 1 January 1994 and the
Detailed Implementation Rules on the Provisional Regulations
of the PRC on LAT (F#E A RFLFE T HISER GITIRHIE
4R Al) effective from 27 January 1995, all income from the
sale or transfer of state-owned land use rights and buildings
in the PRC (being the proceeds of sales of properties less
deductible expenditures including borrowing costs and property
development expenditures) is subject to LAT at progressive
rates ranging from 30% to 60% of the appreciation of land
value with an exemption provided for property sales of ordinary
residential properties (EBIFEZE(E=E) if their appreciation
values do not exceed 20% of the sum of the total deductible
items.

During the year, the Group estimated and made provision for
LAT according to the requirements set forth in the relevant PRC
tax laws and regulations. The actual LAT liabilities are subject
to the determination by the tax authorities upon completion of
the property development projects and the LAT determined by
the tax authorities might be different from the basis on which
the provision for LAT is calculated.

—E-MF —F—=
2014 2013
[t 5% AR¥F ARMF T
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BNER - Current:
RSN PRC CIT 677,864 490,815
T IR E R LAT 538,414 244,216
BRI IGER Overprovision of LAT in prior periods
BEEEE (33,404) —
BT Deferred 19 (301,743) (88,831)
FEBIBEST LB Total tax charge for the year 881,131 646,200
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—F—MF+= A=-+—H 31 December 2014

10. FrSMBAZ (#8)
i P 5 B4 oK £ 40 I B AT R 10 0
BIER X SRR E BB R O BER
2R REM B R (AR R ) REE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONT’D)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before
tax using the statutory tax rate to the tax expense at the
effective tax rate, and a reconciliation of the applicable rate (i.e.,

HEZ2HEEROT : the statutory tax rate) to the effective tax rate, are as follows:
“Z-EF —T—=F
2014 2013
AR¥ETFTT ARETFT
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
R 154 AT A Profit before tax 2,234,813 1,620,130
WHREBEEEMEE Tax at the PRC statutory tax rate
Z A 558,703 25.0 405,033 25.0
BT RRTRMAEH Effect of different income tax regimes
HEZZE of certain companies 177 — 2,822 0.2
EEH 2 WA Income not subject to tax (1,471) (0.1) (1,921) 0.1)
IR s Expenses not deductible for tax 39,157 1.8 14,702 09
TR ET B E Provision for LAT 361,202 16.1 244,216 15.1
THIEER 2 HIET R Taxeffect of LAT (90,300) (4.0) (61,054) (3.8)
RIERZTHIBEEE Tax losses not recognised 30,385 1.4 14,483 09
EiBTHREEEANTIERE Taxlosses utilised from previous periods (31,052) (1.4) — —
i lap /NI Bi=Fa Profits and losses attributable
to associates (1,040) (0.1) (593) —
FREMNB AR RS A Withholding taxes on undistributed
ME 2 B profits of the subsidiaries in the PRC 15,370 0.7 28,512 18
BAEEZERHRE Tax charge at the Group's effective rate
FFECMEBEL WS 881,131 39.4 646,200 40.0
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11.

12.

FLOFHB AEGLFIE

HE-FZT-—WNF+-A=+—8L1#HF
B AR2RHEARGGESF BRE
B 1R AR # 226,047,000t (= — =
F£: ARM®15,913,0007) » % EHE
EIARRBIR I EH®EK (MIEE33) o

R
ZE-—FNERRIARBESRAR
109404 £ A AR 188,486,000
T EBRARARBERERAZZT—NFNA
ZtTHERTHRRAFRG EHE - W
RZZE—INFRHAIKE -
EEQESREEE T —NF+_-A
Zt+t—HIEFENKREAREBESRARE
143495 (ZFT—=ZF: AR¥1094
D) e
AEEMNEZREBRBBAFARARE
RIEERFERAFRE & - FA{EE -

11.

12.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF
THE COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2014 includes a loss of
RMB226,047,000 (2013: RMB15,913,000) which has been
dealt with in the financial statements of the Company (note 33).

DIVIDENDS

The 2013 proposed a final dividend totalling RMB188,486,000
of RMB10.94 cents per share, was approved by the Company’s
shareholders at the annual general meeting on 30 April 2014
and was distributed in May 2014.

The board of directors recommended the payment of a final
dividend of RMB14.34 cents per share for the year ended 31
December 2014 (2013: RMB10.94 cents).

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the
approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.
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—F—MF+= A=-+—H 31 December 2014

13. FAFRBERRISA AR 13. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE

=sREN

BREARNRFDREARG L BESSE
BARBGEFEEFEARNE BTSN
T 19 811,722,960,000 (=& — =
£ :1,315,822,000 f% st & o

TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF
THE COMPANY

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amounts is
based on the profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
Company and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
of 1,722,960,000 (2013: 1,315,822,000) in issue during the

year.
—E-NmF —T—=F
2014 2013
AR¥ TR ARBFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARl EBERFAA Profit attributable to ordinary equity

EEFBEARETFT) holders of the Company (RMB’000) 1,279,026 987,022

BT E B INE Weighted average number of ordinary shares
FHE(AFE) in issue (in thousands) 1,722,960 1,315,822
BEREAREF(F/RARES) Basic earnings per share (RMB cents per share) 74 75

HE-_ZE—=F+-A=t+—HILEE
EETRMOOMEFSHIREED T
B 5 4 1,292,220,000 (% 5t & - R
—E—ZF+ A+ —BHA L%
RETMBERO SERBEFTERNETT
#91,292,219,799 f% f% 17 £ 2 & 2 R &7
MR AT -

BEREERNESBDBBHERNRA L
BRESH A ARG BEARBRMAEE
EEELTARER AL BRMYETHE
SNEBEBCINEFHEEGE - KRB B
ELBSTENERRELEIREE
FeofEEBREERNE  DRRAKZ
P 1B 25 4 88 0 /5 58 A 3 35 4 N 5
B UHEESREEaRMEONSMAX
BINRRGEERRAXNEBIOIETAR
REESEER) -

<>® B R E ARG R A 8 Times Property Holdings Limited

The weighted average number of shares in issue during the
year ended 31 December 2013 is based on the assumption that
1,292,220,000 shares were in issue as if the 1,292,219,799
shares issued by capitalisation of share premium account for
allotment and issue to Asiaciti on 11 December 2013 were
outstanding throughout the entire period presented.

The diluted earnings per share amount is calculated by
adjusting the profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
Company and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares into ordinary shares. The Company’s dilutive
potential ordinary shares are derived from the Convertible
Bonds. In calculating the diluted earnings per share, the
Convertible Bonds are assumed to have been converted into
ordinary shares, and the net profit is adjusted to eliminate the
interest expenses charged to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and the fair value loss on embedded financial
derivatives less the tax effect, if applicable.



13. FAFIHERRBA ARG 13. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE

=BRET(E) TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF
THE COMPANY (CONT'D)
—F-AF —E-=F
2014 2013
ARBTFT  ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000

RAalEdEEREA AEN Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders

MBARBFT) of the Company (RMB’000) 1,279,026 987,022
BFANGEEmKIRG Interest expenses charged to the consolidated

FEBEAZ(AREFIT) statements of profit or loss for the year (RMB'000) — —
AR RE SR ITE T EESHD R Changes in fair value of the derivative component

N BEZSH of the Convertible Bonds (RMB'000) (note 30)

(AREF ) (M5 30) 4,767 —
AREESRESTRTN Profit used to determine diluted

FEAREFIT) earnings per share (RMB’000) 1,283,793 987,022
BT B INE Weighted average number of ordinary

FHE(LATFE) shares in issue (in thousand) 1,722,960 1,315,822
RE AT RRESEITHRR Assumed conversion of

(LATF5H) Convertible Bonds (in thousands) 48,291 —
AR EREEAT Weighted average number of ordinary shares

7 AR Y I AE T S for diluted earnings per share(in thousand)

(ATF3EH) 1,771,251 1,315,822
EREEEN (SR AR S ) Diuted earnings per share (RMB cents per share) 72 75
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ZZ—F+=H=+—H 31 December 2014

14. % - BERRH 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
KEE Group

B
RER
HELHE HENE BLERE
BF #£%  Fumiture,

Leasehold  Leasehold fixtures RE ERIRE @t

land and improve- and office Motor  Construction
buildings ments  equipment vehicles in progress Total

ARBTR ARETR ARMTR ARETT ARBTT ARETR
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

ZE-NE+=A=1—A 31 December 2014

A Cost:
R-E-ME—F-H At 1 January 2014 26,587 540,731 68,401 28,261 82,134 746,114
NE Additions — 8,609 16,323 9,589 39,006 73,527
HE Disposals — (505) (2,648) (3,397) = (6,550)
2 (M3 16) Transfers (note 16) 241,860 121,140 — — (121,400 241,860
RZE-EEF At 31 December 2014
+ZA=1t-H 268,447 669,975 82,076 34,453 — 1,054,951
RitHE: Accumulated depreciation:
R-E-NF—F—H At 1 January 2014 5,677 54,287 35,940 16,404 — 112,308
AEERHCAENNE  Depreciation provided during the year 4,513 42,539 8,882 5,580 - 61,514
e Disposals = (396) (895) (2,592) = (3,883)
RZE-EE At 31 December 2014
+-ZR=1t—H 10,190 96,430 43,927 19,392 — 169,939
BEFE: Net carrying amount; 258,257 573,545 38,149 15,061 — 885,012
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14. Y% - BERRE (8) 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONT'D)
REE () Group (Cont'd)
AL
RER
BETHE  BENE BLAZHRE
BF 3 Furniture,
Leasehold Leasehold fixtures "E ERIE @it
land and improve- and office Motor  Construction
buildings ments equipment vehicles in progress Total

ARBTL ARETT ARMFT ARBTT AREFT ARETT
RMBUOOO ~ RMBOOO  RMBUOO ~ RMBOOO  RMBUOO — RMBOOO

ZE-=%+-F=+-H 31 December 2013

A Cost:
W-_E—=%—F—H At 1 January 2013 26,587 128,754 60,951 29,356 248,762 494410
NE Additions — 203,277 13,447 6 43597 260,327
LERBAR Disposal of subsidiaries — — (4,499) (122) — (4,621)
e Disposals — (1,525) (1,498) (979) — (4,002)
b Transfers — 210,225 — — (210,225) —
RZE—=% At 31 December 2013
+-A=+-H 26,587 540,731 68,401 28,261 82,134 746,114
2HHE: Accumulated depreciation:
W-E-=5—-F-H At 1 January 2013 5,488 14,699 28,134 13,153 = 61474
REEHHCBBEHNE  Depreciation provided during the year 189 41,879 10,205 3375 - 55,648
HENBAR Disposal of subsidiaries - — (1,275) (35) - (1,310)
HE Disposals — (2,291) (1,124) (89) — (3,504)
RZE-=F
+-A=1+-H At 31 December 2013 5,677 54,287 35,940 16,404 = 112,308
FRFE Net carrying amount: 20910 486,444 32,461 11,857 82,134 633,806
RZE—NWEF+_A=+—8 " E@EF At 31 December 2014, certain of the Group’s buildings with a
B AREE240,204,000(=Z 2 — = net carrying amount of approximately RMB240,204,000 (2013:
FE)NAEERETEFEHEET Nil) were pledged to secure bank loans granted to the Group
LEER TAREBENERTE XM (note 29(c)).
29(c)) °
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—F—MF+= A=-+—H 31 December 2014

14. 1% - BEREME (&) 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONT'D)
b N/NE] Company
HH
#£ER
WOERE
HE Furniture,
MEEE fixtures AE
Leasehold and office Motor @t
improvement equipment vehicles Total

ARBTR AREBTR ARBTR ARETR
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

“Z2-mE+ZHA=1+—H 31 December 2014

PR Cost:
R-ZZ-mE—H—H At 1 January 2014 — — 480 480
NE Additions 4,400 36 613 5,049
RZT—F
+=ZA=+—H At 31 December 2014 4,400 36 1,093 5,529
2 E - Accumulated depreciation:
RZZE—lF—-HF—H At 1 January 2014 — — 119 119
AFEEHECBENTE Depreciation provided during the year 293 — 235 528
RZE—F
+-A=+—H At 31 December 2014 293 — 354 647
RHEFEE Net carrying amount: 4,107 36 739 4,882
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14. % - BERRE (&)

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONT’'D)
RAT(HE) Company (Cont’d)
M -
HER
PNERME
HE Furniture,
YIEEE fixtures E
Leasehold and office Motor FeH
improvement equipment vehicles Total
ARMSFIT ARETFT ARBEFT ARYTFIT
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ZZ2-=%+ZHA=1+—H 31 December 2013
B Cost:
R-F—=F—F—H At 1 January 2013 — — 493 493
& Disposals — — (13) (13)
RZE—=F
+-F=+—8© At 31 December 2013 — — 480 480
2FIE - Accumulated depreciation:
R-_Z—=F—F—H At 1 January 2013 — — 118 118
AEEHECBENTE Depreciation provided during the year — — 1 1
& Disposals — — — —
R-Z—=%F
+-A=+—H At 31 December 2013 — — 119 119
R Net carrying amount: — — 361 361
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—F—MF+= A=-+—H 31 December 2014

15. AL EERE 15. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

—F-HmF —E-=F

2014 2013

AR%FT AR% Tt

RMB’000 RMB’000

R—A—BMERE%E Carrying amount at 1 January 2,141,355 1,494,902
FERNE Additions during the year 1,041,121 698,229
1 BE B /B 2 ) Acquisition of subsidiaries — 306,263
HERERERYE Transfer to properties under development (755,881) (358,039)
RTZA=+—HMEEM®MAE&% Carrying amount at 31 December 2,426,595 2,141,355
W mENE S Less: Current portion (1,041,121) (755,881)
IERENEB Non-current portion 1,385,474 1,385,474

HELWERPEANDBRERPEER
B - BRIBRSH ARG EIRAS
% HEREEBRERERYE -

R-E—NWE+-_A=+—H E@E%
FHBELN A AREE82,842,000L(=
T—=—4F: AR¥25300,000T)K%E
FAEEASHMEERE - URER

The leasehold land is situated in Mainland China and is held
under a long term lease, construction on which has not yet
commenced. Balances will be transferred to properties under
development when construction commences.

Certain parcels of the Group’s leasehold land with an aggregate
carrying amount of approximately RMB682,842,000 as at 31
December 2014 (2013: RMB25,300,000) have been pledged
to secure bank loans granted to the Group (note 29(c)).

TAREENRTER(MIFE29(c)) °

16. ¥EM*E 16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
—EF-0mF —F—=F
2014 2013
B st AR¥Fx AR Fx
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
R—A—BHEESE Carrying amount at 1 January 1,582,000 1,540,000
ERAHEABRAME Transfer to owner-occupied property 14 (241,860) —
NABERAEMSFWRE Net gain from a fair value adjustment 5 57,800 42,000
RT-_A=1+—HWEEM®MSE% Carrying amount at 31 December 1,397,940 1,582,000

AEBZREVELNPEANM B RSP
HHERA REVEIZRBELH
EXHHETE=ZT EZFABEARNK
B B@wEME36() -

The Group’s investment properties are situated in Mainland
China and held under medium term. The investment properties
are mainly leased to third parties under operating lease
arrangements, further details of which are included in note
36(a) to the consolidated financial statements.
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16. RBEM*R(W])

R-ZE—mWFE+-_A=+—H A£H
ZEREMERBIUAEAREEGEMA
AEERTERANEHEAARE
1,397,940,000 t(ZZE—=F : AR
1,582,000,0007T ) - N&E & ~ B % 42
EREFRTIEZT—RIEHEEME
EHAEEYEETINDGEE  TBE
EREMSNGE B2 BUMELESR
MR EERE - REBEZHHAERNH
PSR REMETHEREZGERMR
HEBELGEELERETE BT
—NEERZZE—=F+=-A=+—8"
AEBEBZREVEEERR  UBMER
FAEBEMRITE R R EME R
29(c)) °

PAREBERER
RZZE-—MER_T—-—=F+=A
=t+—H AEENEEMENIAE
BERBAEATAEBRGABBEFE(FE3
) o

REFESRM FIEAE2E ML
AR EEHBEE R EA R EEH
SHARBLEIE -

REMENBEDRAERLBZL 2
RABMRAIELRNHEEERMELR -

LHEREVEBEMTNERNG ABIEN
MEHIMT

EAFUEE gE

L DN 1 (IEFH)

TE  MRBENHEXR 60,900-114,000
(8FpKAR®ET)  (40,000-81,000)

B MHEBNHEXR 28,000-44,000
(BYFRARET) (28,900)

BB mHEBUEER 330,000-500,000
(5fEEf) (500,000

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONT'D)

The Group's investment properties were revalued on
31 December 2014 at RMB1,397,940,000 (2013:
RMB1,582,000,000) by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited,
an independent firm of professionally qualified valuers, on an
open market, existing use basis. Every half year, the Group's
chief financial officer decides to appoint which external valuer
to be responsible for the external valuations of the Group's
properties. Selection criteria include market knowledge,
reputation, independence and whether professional standards
are maintained. The Group’s chief financial officer has
discussions with the valuer on the valuation assumptions and
valuation results when the valuation is performed for financial
reporting. At 31 December 2014 and 2013, the investment
properties of the Group were pledged to secure the bank loans
and other borrowings granted to the Group (note 29(c)).

Fair value hierarchy

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, fair values of the Group's
investment properties were measured using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3).

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers
into or out of Level 3.

The valuaitons of investment properties were arrived at with the
adoption of Direct Comparison Method by making reference to
the comparable sale prices in the relevant locality.

Below is a summary of the key inputs to the valuations of
investment properties:

Significant Range
unobservable inputs (weighted average)

Retail Market unit sale rate 60,900-114,000
(RMB/sq.m) (40,000-81,000)
Office Market unit sale rate 28,000-44,000
(RMB/sq.m) (28,900)
Car Parking  Market unit sale rate 330,000-500,000
(Per one space) (500,000)
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17. RIBEATMERE 17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
¥/ N/NE| Company
—E—OF —E—=F
2014 2013
AR% Tt AR% Tt
RMB’000 RMB’000
KRB RRMIEE * Investments in subsidiaries* — —
FARRARBEENTBEENE The amounts due from and to subsidiaries included in
WERENMB ARG ZZRED N AEAR the Company’s current assets and current liabilities of
#4,852,915,0000(= & — = fF: RMB4,852,915,000 (2013: RMB1,356,235,000) and
A K #1,356,235,0007T ) & A R ¥ RMB127,887,000 (2013: RMB116,133,000), respectively, are
127,887,000 c(ZE—=F: AR unsecured, interest-free and are repayable on demand.

116,133,000 T) » JhEEE - 28 - B
REREEE o

TEWBATZEBFHET ¢ Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:
AATEEAELSL
HMAYL, RIR EEEST
EENMLRA Y ERTEE/ Percentage of
Place and FMBEA  equity attributable to
date of Issued the owners of
incorporation/ ordinary/ the Company FTEEK
=g establishment and registered HE B  Principal
Name operations share capital Direct Indirect  activities
BB EBRAR([EH]) REHR RS 3ETL 100 — REZER
Wisdom Sharp Investments Limited —EERRF usD3 Investment
(“Wisdom Sharp”) =A=-+=H holding
BVI
22 March 2006
Million Sensor Management Limited HEHM RS 1ETT — 100 #HEER
(I'Million Sensor ) ZETLF usD1 Investment
Million Sensor Management Limited HFAZ+HH holding
(“Million Sensor”) BVI
25 May 2007
Grand Highway International Ltd. HBHERRES 1% — 100 ®EEK
(T Grand Highway) —TTLF usD1 Investment
Grand Highway International Ltd. NA+=H holding
(“Grand Highway”) BVI
13 September 2007

<>® B R E ARG R A 8 Times Property Holdings Limited



17. BB ATRKRE (1)

17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(CONT'D)
RAT(EE) Company (Cont’d)
KAREE AER
HMERY, BIR EEEoT
EEMNMZERAS BRITLE/ Percentage of
Place and FEMBEA  equity attributable to
date of Issued the owners of
incorporation/ ordinary/ the Company FTEEE
e2g A establishment and registered HE B#  Principal
Name operations share capital Direct Indirect  activities
Venus Tower Limited ([Venus Tower]) REBERRES 1%t — 100 #‘EER
Venus Tower Limited (“Venus Tower”) —EELF usD1 Investment
NWA=+—H holding
BVI
21 September 2007
BERKER AR ([HBERK]) RBERRES 17T — 100 HEER
Super Best Global Limited (“Super Best”) —E-mF usD1 Investment
ER-+=H holding
BVI
22 May 2014
BRIERAR AR RBERRES 1% — 100 #HEER
(TEazRER]) —E-mF usD1 Investment
Clear Strength Holdings Limited FAZ+H holding
(“Clear Strength”) BVI
20 May 2014
SEBRAR([E%]) REHBREHS 1%t — 100 |EER
August Skill Limited (“August Skill") —E-F usbl Investment
EA-+NH holding
BVI
28 May 2014
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17. R EATMRE(I]) 17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(CONT'D)
RAT (LK) Company (Cont’d)
KAREEAER
HMEY, RIK - Eoy= e
EENMBEA B ERITLE/ Percentage of
Place and FEMEA  equity attributable to
date of Issued the owners of
incorporation/ ordinary/ the Company FTEEE
e2g A establishment and registered HE B  Principal
Name operations share capital Direct Indirect  activities
ER(BEB)EERBRAA(ESR]) & 900,000 7T — 100 HEER
(Mi7E (a) —hh=%F HKD900,000 Investment
Wah Tai (H.K.) Development Limited HAZ+NH holding
(“Wah Tai") (note (a)) Hong Kong
28 May 1992
EERRREERLAR(TABRREE]) BF 10,0008 7T — 100 HEER
(Ff5E (a)) —ERTE HKD10,000 Investment
Hong Kong Times Investments Limited —AZ-+mH holding
(“Hong Kong Times Investments”) (note (a))  Hong Kong
24 March 2000
ERELERFLERBRAGR(LEERX]) BE 10,0008 7T — 100 HEER
(F5E (a)) —ERTF HKD10,000 Investment
Steelmine Minerals (H.K.) Development +AmA holding
Limited (“Steelmine Minerals”) (note (a)) Hong Kong
4 October 2000
BB ERRAR([&H]) BE 61,782,691 T — 100 ®EZEAK
(Hf&E(a)) —ANZ=F HKD61,782,691 Investment
Profit City Investment MA=-—+=H holding
Limited (“Profit City”) (note (a)) Hong Kong
23 April 1992
KEEER AT ([JRE]) BE 1B — 100 |EERK
Times Billion Limited (“Times Billion”) —T—mF HKD1 Investment
FA-++H holding
Hong Kong
27 May 2014
BRERQA([ER]) &5 1AL — 100 HEER
Precision Time Limited (“Precision Time") —E-mEF HKD1 Investment
AA=H holding
Hong Kong
3 May 2014
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17. BB ATBRE (]) 17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(CONT'D)
RAT(EE) Company (Cont’d)
KAREE AERL
HMEY, BIR EEEoT
EEMNMERAS BRITLE/ Percentage of
Place and FEMEEA  equity attributable to
date of Issued the owners of
incorporation/ ordinary/ the Company FTEEE
e2g A establishment and registered HE B#  Principal
Name operations share capital Direct Indirect activities
KEAERAB([HEE]) &5 1A7T — 100 #|EER
Ocean Times Inc Limited (“Ocean Times”) —E-NF HKD1 Investment
mMAMA holding
Hong Kong
4 April 2014
ENTRAMESEERAR([ERER]) B FEAH 83,000,000 %7t — 100 MERER
Guangzhou Times Property —EE-F USD83,000,000 ®EER
Group Co., Ltd. FANE Property
(“Times Group”) PRC/ development
Mainland China and
9 May 2001 investment
holding
BNTEARCEMEREAR AT HEFEAL AR — 100 |EER
([EReEME]) (KT ) —EThHE 250,000,000 7T Investment
Guangzhou Times Enterprise Real =A++tH RMB250,000,000 holding
Estate Investment Co., Ltd. PRC/
(“Times Real Estate”) (note (a)) Mainland China
17 March 2005
BMNmERBEEREBRA A FE HRE A AR — 100 MERER
(TEMEZ]) (M) —EERF 120,000,000 7T HEER
Guangzhou Times Shengyu MA=+H RMB120,000,000 Property
Investment Co., Ltd. PRC/ development
(“Guangzhou Shengyu”) (note (a)) Mainland China and
30 April 2005 investment
holding
ERNRBERHEREERAA HE R EAH AR — 100 #EME
(TERBZE]) (HE ) ZEERF 80,000,000 7T Property
Guangdong Times Shengyu Real ~A+TRE RMB80,000,000 development
Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC/

Mainland China
19 June 2006

(“Guangdong Shengyu”) (note (a))
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17. R EATMRE(I]) 17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(CONT'D)
RAT (LK) Company (Cont’d)
KATREEAER
HMEY, BRI - Eoy= e
EENMBEA B ERITLE/ Percentage of
Place and FEMEA  equity attributable to
date of Issued the owners of
incorporation/ ordinary/ the Company FTEEE
e2g establishment and registered HE B3  Principal
Name operations share capital Direct Indirect activities
KRR HRELREBGRAR([HEFREK]) FE FHEANM N — 100 #ERE
(Ff5E (a)) TETRE 10,000,000 7T Property
Zhuhai Zhongzhu Century =AZ+NH RMB10,000,000 development
Investment Co., Ltd. PRC/
(“Zhuhai Zhongzhu”) (note (a)) Mainland China
28 March 2006
BRETREERAR([HBRAEZ]) HE B A AR — 100 #ERE
(Fi7E (a) —ETLF 5,000,000 7T Property
Fogang Guanheng Investment Co., Ltd. —A+ArA RMB5,000,000 development
(“Fogang Guanheng”) (note (a)) PRC/
Mainland China
19 January 2007
BLUTHRERHELZREER QA HE B A AR — 100 ¥R
(TR (M) —ET 32,000,000 7T Property
Foshan Yudonglong Real —AZ-+=H RMB32,000,000 development
Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC/
(“Foshan Yudonglong”) (note (a)) Mainland China
22 January 2002
ENTREEwEERLAA(ENREE]) #B/ +TEA AR — 100 #ERE
(Ff5E (a)) —ANAE 364,307,750 7T Property
Guangzhou Minhua Real Estate Co., Ltd. MARH RMB364,307,750 development
(“Guangzhou Minhua”) (note (a)) PRC/
Mainland China
5 April 1994
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17. BB ATBRE (]) 17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(CONT'D)
AT () Company (Cont’d)
YNGR 2PN 3
FMREL/ BIK BEEDH
EEMNMERAS BRITLE/ Percentage of
Place and FEMEEA  equity attributable to
date of Issued the owners of
incorporation/ ordinary/ the Company FTEEE
e2g A establishment and registered HE B#  Principal
Name operations share capital Direct Indirect activities
BREMKERMRIEERAA B B A AR® — 100 BE#M=#E
([RRIBEAR ) (BTEE (a) —ETLF 3,000,000 7T et
Fogang Shengxin Water and NA+=H RMB3,000,000 ES S
Electricity Garden Engineering Co., Ltd. PRC/ Garden
(“Fogang Shengxin”) (note (a)) Mainland China landscape
13 September 2007 design
and
property
decoration
BRAmEMTRAERAR FE B A AR — 100 MEEE
([EMAAE]) (@) —EZLF 3,000,000 7 Property
Fogang Times Bairui Decoration A=+ N8 RMB3,000,000 decoration
Engineering Co., Ltd. PRC/
(“Fogang Bairui”) (note (a)) Mainland China
28 September 2007
FILTRREEEZEFR DA FE B A ARE — 100 M
([ wslae ) (FEE (a)) TR E 10,000,000 7T Property
Zhongshan Times Kaixuan Asset Co., Ltd. FA+HA RMB10,000,000 development
(“Zhongshan Kaixuan”) (note (a)) PRC/
Mainland China
15 May 2007
BLTREERABEEHEREARAR FE HEAM ARE — 100
([ EEE]) (HiE @) —ETLF 30,000,000 7T Property
Foshan Nanhai Times + A~H RMB30,000,000 development
Shengyu Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.  PRC/
(“Foshan Nanhai Shengyu”) (note (a)) Mainland China
6 July 2007

2014 £ E {5 Annual Report 2014 @



LUpE RS E IR

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—F—MF+= A=-+—H 31 December 2014

17. BB ATRIRE (18)

17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(CONT'D)
RAT (LK) Company (Cont’d)
YNGR 2PN 3
FMREL RIK EEEIH
EENMBEA B ERITLE/ Percentage of
Place and FEMEA  equity attributable to
date of Issued the owners of
incorporation/ ordinary/ the Company FTEEE
e2g A establishment and registered HE B  Principal
Name operations share capital Direct Indirect  activities
HREBRBERSERAR([HEME]) FE FEANM ARE — 100 MEmRE
(Ff5E(a)) —EEE 30,000,000 7T Property
Fogang Times Real Estate —A=+—H RMB30,000,000 development
Development Co., Ltd. PRC/
(“Fogang Real Estate”) (note (a)) Mainland China
31 March 2004
BEMNRMEMEREER AR BB A AR — 100 ®EME
([EMEFL) (HEE(a)) —hh=F 111,075,800 7T Property
Guangzhou Donghe Real Estate +-A=+—H RMB111,075,800 leasing
Development Co., Ltd. PRC/
(“Guangzhou Donghe”) (note (a)) Mainland China
31 December 1993
BEMTHRERMSARAR(TEMNGE]) FE,hE A AR — 100 =8A&I(
(FF%E (a)) —ETLF 3,500,000 7T Landscape
Guangzhou Ruixian Landscaping Co., Ltd. —HEH RMB3,500,000 architecture
(“Guangzhou Ruixian”) (note (a)) PRC/
Mainland China
5 January 2007
KEMRREEREARAR([HKELEE]) F & FHEAM ARE — 100 MERE
(Ff5E (a)) —EELF 50,000,000 7T Property
Zhuhai Times Fengzhuo Investment Co., Ltd. +A+—H RMB50,000,000 development
(“Zhuhai Fengzhuo”) (note (a)) PRC/
Mainland China
11 July 2007
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17. BB ATBRE (]) 17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(CONT'D)
RAT(EE) Company (Cont’d)
YNGR 2PN 3
HMEY, BIR EEEoT
EEMNMERAS BRITLE/ Percentage of
Place and FEMEEA  equity attributable to
date of Issued the owners of
incorporation/ ordinary/ the Company FTEEE
e2g A establishment and registered HE B#  Principal
Name operations share capital Direct Indirect activities
BRBAKREEERAR ([HEXE]) FE FEAH AR — 100 MEFE
(Fi7E (a) —ZEENF 10,000,000 7T Property
Fogang Times Yongsheng —A+—A RMB10,000,000 development
Investment Co., Ltd PRC/
(“Fogang Yongsheng”) (note (a)) Mainland China
11 January 2008
EETEERERACAA(HATE)) FE/ FEN N1 — 100 MEHE
(Fi7E (a) —ETLF 8,000,000 7T Property
Fogang Zhongyi Asset Development +-A=-t+AhR RMB8,000,000 development
Limited Liability Company PRC/
(“Fogang Zhongyi”) (note (a)) Mainland China
29 December 2007
BLUT=ZKWEREHEZRBERQA FE B A AR — 100 #ERE
([BrvazE ) (K (a) —EThHF 48,000,000 7T Property
Foshan Sanshui Yuhua Real Estate AARMH RMB48,000,000 development
Development Co., Ltd. PRC/
(“Foshan Yuhua”) (note (a)) Mainland China
4 August 2005
BMTRAMEERERAA FE B A AR — 100 MEERE
([HRMEEER]) (M (a) —hhNE 125,500,000 7T Property
Guangzhou Times Property +=ZA+N\R RMB125,500,000 management
Management Co., Ltd. PRC/
(“Times Property Management”) (note (a)) Mainland China
18 December 1998
BMmEARIGERNERAR BB A AR — 100 #HEER
(TBMXR] ) (Mz@) ZETNERAZH 10,010,000 7T Investment
Guangzhou Times Tianyi Consulting Co., Ltd. PRC/ Mainland China RMB10,010,000 holding

(“Guangzhou Tianyi") (note (a)) 2 June 2009
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17. R B AFMRE(1E) 17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(CONT'D)
RAT (LK) Company (Cont’d)
FNUNGTE 2PN 3
FMREL RIK EEEIH
EENMBEA B BITEE/ Percentage of
Place and FEMEA  equity attributable to
date of Issued the owners of
incorporation/ ordinary/ the Company FTEEE
e2g establishment and registered HE B3  Principal
Name operations share capital Direct Indirect activities
BMNTERERZREBRA A B B A AR — 100 MEmE
(TEMZEZ]) (M (a)) —ZT-ZF 50,000,000 7& Property
Guangzhou Times Hongtai —A+mMA RMB50,000,000 development
Investment Co., Ltd. PRC/ Mainland China
(“Guangzhou Hongtai”) (note (a)) 14 January 2010
BN ERIREBR AR R B A AR — 100 #EmE
(TBEMZE]) (FHEE(a)) —EENF 20,000,000 7T Property
Guangzhou Fujie Investment Co., Ltd. +AZ++H RMB20,000,000 development
(“Guangzhou Fujie”) (note (a)) PRC/ Mainland China
27 October 2009
BEMARREFRAA BB A ARE — 100 ¥
(fi B 1) (M) —E-ZF-A+H 30,000,000 7T Property
Qingyuan Rongjing Investment Co., Ltd. PRC/ Mainland China RMB30,000,000 development
(“Qingyuan Rongjing”) (note (a)) 10 February 2010
BMEREHMEMAER L B A AR — 100 ¥
([*tEHEJ)(W.ﬁ ) —E-ZF 300,000,000 7T Property
Qingyuan Xilong Real Estate —A+=H RMB300,000,000 development
Development Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China
(“Qingyuan Xilong”) (note (a)) 12 March 2010
RILmEBEEREERA A B E A ARE — 100 #EFE
([H L&) (M) ZEELF 45,000,000 7T Property
Zhongshan Wanlian Real Estate ~NATAE RMB45,000,000 development
Development Co., Ltd. PRC/ Mainland China
(“Zhongshan Wanlian”) (note (a)) 19 June 2007
RITRIEEEREBR AR B W E A ARE — 100 MERFE
([ X (BEE (a)) —E-TF=F+H 10,000,000 7T Property
Zhongshan Tianyue Real Estate PRC/ Mainland China RMB10,000,000 development

Investment Co., Ltd.
(“Zhongshan Tianyue”) (note (a))

10 March 2010
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17. BB ATBRE (]) 17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(CONT'D)
RAT(EE) Company (Cont’d)
YNGR 2PN 3
FMREL BIK BEEDH
EEMNMERAS BRTLE/ Percentage of
Place and FEMBEA  equity attributable to
date of Issued the owners of
incorporation/ ordinary/ the Company FTEXEE
e2g A establishment and registered B B#  Principal
Name operations share capital Direct Indirect  activities
BMmEEREBR AR FE B A AR — 70 ®REER
([EMEEE ) (M () —Z-ZFtANH 10,010,000 7T Investment
Guangzhou Junbao Investment Co., Ltd. PRC/ Mainland China RMB10,010,000 holding
(“Guangzhou Junbao”) (note (a)) 8 July 2010
BMRATERR AR ([EMAREAL) B B A AR — 70 MERE
(Kt3E (a)) —E-TF 50,000,000 7T Property
Guangzhou Tianlang Trading Co., Ltd. +tHA+HH RMB50,000,000 development
(“Guangzhou Tianlang”) (note (a)) PRC/ Mainland China
15 July 2010
ENTEESEEFHMEARAQA FE B A ARE — 9 MEME
(TEMBE®E]) (T (a) —AA=FNAXE 360,000,000 7T Property
Guangzhou Panyu Nanying Property Co., Ltd. ~ PRC/ Mainland China RMB360,000,000 development
(“Guangzhou Nanying”) (note (a)) 6 August 1992
BMAREEMBRAB(TEMKE ] FE B A ARE — 51 MERME
(Ff5E (a)) —E-ZFE\A=H 51,000,000 7T Property
Guangzhou Tianhe Construction PRC/ Mainland China RMB51,000,000 development
Material Co., Ltd. 3 August 2010
(“Guangzhou Tianhe”") (note (a))
EMNTERESERAR(TEMER]) BB A AR — 100 K|EER
(FI3E (a)) # - 10,000,000 7T Investment
Guangzhou Zhuorui Trading Co., Ltd. +—HA=-+—H RMB10,000,000 holding
(“Guangzhou Zhuorui”) (note (a)) # PRC/ Mainland China

21 November 2011
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17. BB ATRIRE (18)

17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(CONT'D)
RAT (LK) Company (Cont’d)
FNUNGTE 2PN 3
FMREL RIK EEEIH
EENMBEA B ERITLE/ Percentage of
Place and FEMEA  equity attributable to
date of Issued the owners of
incorporation/ ordinary/ the Company FTEEE
e2g establishment and registered HE B3  Principal
Name operations share capital Direct Indirect activities
BEMNTERAERIREERAR B B A AR — 100 MEmE
(TEMER]) (M3 () —Z——F+tA=H 10,000,000 7T Property
Guangzhou Times Zichen PRC/ Mainland China RMB10,000,000 development
Investment Co., Ltd. 3 July 2012
(“Guangzhou Zichen”) (note (a))
BEREEEXXBARARIEREE]) B/ +FEANM AR — 100 #EmE
(Mi7E (a) —hANRF 42,300,000 7T Property
Guangdong Guangchang Industrial ~NATE RMB42,300,000 development
Development Co., Ltd. PRC/ Mainland China
(“Guangdong Guangchang”) (note (a)) 19 June 1985
KERHEHEREERAR B B A ARE — 100
(I%E=81) (K3 (a) “EELFENANA 43,800,000 7T Property
Zhuhai Jingrun Real Estate PRC/ Mainland China RMB43,800,000 development
Development Co., Ltd. 4 June 2007
(“Zhuhai Jingrun”) (note (a))

BEAMEERHEREAERAA BB A ARE — 100 MM
(HRBEZD (M ()# —E-—fF 50,000,000 7T Property
Zhuhai Jiayu Real Estate +—HA=H RMB50,000,000 development

Development Co., Ltd. PRC/ Mainland China
(“Zhuhai Jiayu”) (note (a)) # 2 November 2012
KETMHEEEEREERAA B W E A AR — 100 MERE
(TZRBEE]) (K@) —T—CF 40,000,000 7t Property
Zhuhai Shenghui Real Estate +=-AXH RMB40,000,000 development
Development Co., Ltd. PRC/ Mainland China
(“Zhuhai Shenghui”) (note (a)) 6 December 2012
RAVREFEHERERR DA HE B A AR — 100 MERE
(TRABORE ) (K3 () —TTC 50,000,000t Property
Changsha Meiguiyuan Real Estate NAZ=+H RMB50,000,000 development
Development Co., Ltd. PRC/ Mainland China
(“Changsha Meiguiyuan”) (note (a)) 30 September 2002
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17. BB ATBRE (]) 17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(CONT'D)
RAT(EE) Company (Cont’d)
YNGR 2PN 3
FMREL BIK BEEDH
EEMNMERAS BRTLE/ Percentage of
Place and FEMBEA  equity attributable to
date of Issued the owners of
incorporation/ ordinary/ the Company FTEXEE
e2g A establishment and registered B B#  Principal
Name operations share capital Direct Indirect  activities
BILTRAKFREGRAT B B A AR — 100 ®EEZER
([ox= 1) (M5 () —E-CF 35,000,000 7¢ Investment
Foshan Times Yongheng Investment Co., Ltd.  /A\A=+=H RMB35,000,000 holding
(“Foshan Yongheng”) (note (a)) PRC/ Mainland China
22 August 2012
BMTEEBEERARAA FE B A AR — 100 MEMEE
(TEMZEZ]) (K@) —ZEE-FAATH 30,000,000 7T RER
Guangzhou Zhide Commercial PRC/ Mainland China RMB30,000,000 Property
Management Co., Ltd. 10 May 2001 leasing and
(“Guangzhou Zhide") (note (a)) management
BLUTEEERNEERFRDA R E A AR — 100 MEER
([ZEEE]) (T (a) —ET——fF 65,000,000 7T Property
Foshan Zhide Zhengxing Property mA=-+NH RMB65,000,000 management
Management Co., Ltd. PRC/ Mainland China
(“Zhide Zhengxing”) (note (a)) 28 April 2011
EMNTERYEERERAR B B A ARE — 100 AEER
(Z2EWz (M3 () ZETNF 80,500,000 7t Hotel
Guangzhou Zhide Property AA=+H RMB80,500,000 management
Management Co., Ltd. PRC/ Mainland China
(“Zhide Property”) (note (a)) 30 September 2009
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17. R EATMRE(I]) 17. INVES TMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(CONT'D)
RAT (LK) Company (Cont’d)
FNUNGTE 2PN 3
FMREL RIK EEEIH
EENMBEA B ERITLE/ Percentage of
Place and FEMEA  equity attributable to
date of Issued the owners of
incorporation/ ordinary/ the Company FTEEE
e2g establishment and registered HE B3  Principal
Name operations share capital Direct Indirect activities
EMNTMEERRECEREBRA A FEL HE A AR — 100 MEME
(2R ) (M () ZEENF 10,100,000 7t RE®R
Guangzhou Zhide Technology Business NA=+—H RMB10,100,000 Property
Incubator Co., Ltd. PRC/ Mainland China leasing and
(“Zhide Technology”) (note (a)) 31 August 2009 management
EMNTEEESHEEERRBERAQA] R B A AR — 55 MEME
(TEMERZE]) (M (a) —E-ZF 30,000,000 7T RER
Guangzhou Guangdechang Commercial —AZ-+HAH RMB30,000,000 Property
Management Service Co., Ltd. PRC/ Mainland China leasing and
(“Guangzhou Guangdechang”) (note (a)) 25 March 2010 management
KERERHMEREERAR B E A AR — 100 ¥
([TRFBEE ) (M3 (a) —T——F 5,000,000 7T Property
Zhuhai Guoji Real Estate =A+NH RMB5,000,000 development
Development Co., Ltd. PRC/ Mainland China
(“Zhuhai Guoji”) (note (a)) 18 March 2011
KEMAFIEcEEHELXRBRAA BB A AR — 51 WEME
(T%E2E]) (K (a) —ANZFtANA 1,000,000 7T Property
Zhuhai Doumen District Jinwu PRC/ Mainland China RMB1,000,000 development
Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. 9 July 1992
(“Zhuhai Jinwu") (note (a))

EMNTXANEERERAR B W E A AR — 70 WMEERE
(TEMKEr ) (Bt & (a) —T-TF 1,000,000 7T Property
Guangzhou Tiansi Property NAZ=Z+H RMB1,000,000 management
Management Co., Ltd. PRC/ Mainland China

(“Guangzhou Tiansi”) (note (a)) 30 August 2010
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17. REB A RMRE (&)

17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(CONT'D)
RAT(EE) Company (Cont’d)
YNGR 2PN 3
FMREL BIK BEEDH
EEMNMERAS BRTLE/ Percentage of
Place and FEMBEA  equity attributable to
date of Issued the owners of
incorporation/ ordinary/ the Company FTEXEE
e2g A establishment and registered B B#  Principal
Name operations share capital Direct Indirect  activities
EMGEAEEXER AR FE HE A AR — 50 WIERE
(TEM&EMBEE]) (3 (a)) —ZT—=F 350,000,000 7¢ Property
Guangzhou Lvdi Baiyun NATHE RMB350,000,000 development
Asset Co., Ltd. PRC/ Mainland China
(“Guangzhou Lvdi Baiyun”) (note (a)) 19 August 2013
HLUTEEFHEREARAA FE B A AR — 100 M
([HLeR]) (T ) —E—=%+AFH 10,000,000 7T Property
Foshan Fengrui Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC/ Mainland China RMB10,000,000 development
(“Foshan Fengrui”) (note (a)) 5 July 2013
RILTERFEHERERR AR FE B A ARE — 100 "
([ WEE]D (@) = 250,000,000 7T Property
Zhongshan Hengsheng Real Estate +=-A=+<H RMB250,000,000 development
Investment Co., Ltd. PRC/ Mainland China
(“Zhongshan Hengsheng”) (note (a)) 26 December 2013
BLTIEELARFNEHELRBRAF HE R EAH AR — 100 #ERE
(T NE7=sA A1) (M5 (a)) —T-mEF 1,200,000,000 7¢ Property
Foshan Shunde Hongtaili Real mMA=-+=H RMB1,200,000,000 development
Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC/ Mainland China
(“Shunde Hongtaili”) (note (a)) 22 April 2014
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17. BB ATRIRE (18)

17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(CONT'D)
RAT (LK) Company (Cont’d)
FNUNGTE 2PN 3
HMEY, BRI - Eoy= e
EENMBEA B ERITLE/ Percentage of
Place and FEMEA  equity attributable to
date of Issued the owners of
incorporation/ ordinary/ the Company FTEEE
e2g establishment and registered HE B3  Principal
Name operations share capital Direct Indirect activities
BMNTEEEHESRAA FEL HE A AR — 60 WEME
([EMEE]) (M) —ZT-F 10,000,000 7T Property
Guangzhou Zengyuan Real Estate Co., Ltd. =AZ+NH RMB10,000,000 development
(“Guangzhou Zengyuan”) (note (a)) PRC/ Mainland China
28 March 2014
EBNTMERREGRAA R B A AR — 60 HwEER
(TBME®R])(MEE(a)) —E M 10,000,000 7T Investment
Guangzhou Zhiyuan Investments Co., Ltd. —AZ-+mH RMB10,000,000 holding
(“Guangzhou Zhiyuan”) (note (a)) PRC/ Mainland China
24 February 2014
EMTEREHEREERAR BB A AR — 100
(TEMEH ) (a) —ET—MF 800,000,000 7T Property
Guangzhou Fengtuo Property Development ANAZ+Z=H RMBS800,000,000 development
Co., Ltd. (“Guangzhou Fengtuo”) (note (a)) ~ PRC/ Mainland China
23 June 2014
BLTAREHEREERAA B E A AR — 100 MM
([ #EZE ) (FEE (a) —ET—MF 50,000,000 7T Property
Foshan Chengtai Property =A=+H RMB50,000,000 development
Development Co., Ltd. PRC/ Mainland China
(“Foshan Chengtai”) (note (a)) 20 March 2014
KEMREEHEREARAR B W E A AR — 100 MERE
([ERF8R2E ) (ME (a)) —E-mEF 1,100,000,000 7T Property
Zhuhai Jinrong Real Estate —ANA RMB1,100,000,000 development
Development Co., Ltd. PRC/
(“Zhuhai Jinrong”) (note (a)) Mainland China
9 January 2014
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17. BB ATBRE (]) 17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(CONT'D)
RAT(EE) Company (Cont’d)
YNGR 2PN 3
FMREL BIK BEEDH
EEMNMERAS BRTLE/ Percentage of
Place and FEMBEA  equity attributable to
date of Issued the owners of
incorporation/ ordinary/ the Company FTEXEE
e2g A establishment and registered B B#  Principal
Name operations share capital Direct Indirect  activities
BMTRAREEEHEHEREERAR FE/FEAN AR — 100 SHERIE
(TEMEZ] (K@) —E-NF 10,000,000 7T AR 7% R
Guangzhou Times Zhiye Real Estate Sales +A=+H RMB10,000,000 Sales agency
Agent Co., Ltd. PRC/ service and
(“Guangzhou Zhiye") (note (a)) Mainland China consultancy
30 July 2014
BLUTRARBEHEZRBERAA] B B A ARE — 100 #ZEFE
([BrIL&ss ) (M () —ZE—F 200,000,000 7¢ Property
Foshan Times Rongjin Real Estate NAZ+H RMB200,000,000 development
Development Co., Ltd. PRC/
(“Foshan Rongjin”) (note (a)) Mainland China
26 August 2014
EMmEAHEAREERBERRAT FE B A AR — 100 #HPEHE
(TEMHEF]) (M (a)) —ET-mF 10,000,000 7T Network
Guangzhou Times Linlibang Network NLAZH RMB10,000,000 sales
Techonology Co., Ltd. PRC/
(“Guangzhou Linlibang”) (note (a)) Mainland China
2 September 2014
BLTRAMEREMERERERAA B B A AR — 100 MERE
([ = 1) (M) —E-F 600,000,000 7¢ Property
Foshan Times Yujing Real +ZA+H RMB600,000,000 development
Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC/
(“Foshan Yujing”) (note (a)) Mainland China
10 December 2014
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17. BB ATRIRE (18)

AT (H)

HEQALAREME LR SR B
METREARZRANERNEERERN
NZERRWF X EHBEMNS -

it

(@) EEREMBRRREEBLAGHMEHHL

ZX G AR R BB E MK E R RE
REHB AR

# REAEFEETBLSEREARR T
—UEHRET I M E TRELRE - BNEHM
MR A RKGEBI0 R AEZE
REEETZESERERAIUBRAKS
fE 2T st AR % 449,386,000 (R =&
—WE+ZA=+—B)(R=T—=F+=A
=+—H : T) (M5 29(e)) HIARRIE K  BRHE
AT ENBEREMNS RIS EREE
£60% & 40% HBRHE ©

RIERTR 25 - RSB A AR EDEA
AT SE & %R B8 10 8 M 2 3 1 IR AR 2 0 B o5
e Wi EXBRAFEFRBERATES
T AKBEREEEREREMN SR RKEE
B(HEAIEBRRDMES -

At ENZERELHELT LRIUARR
ZERELER  RAKERBEEEEB QA
BHEREERROEREN  UKZFEE
ARRERYTEN  AAFEERA &
FHEQANPBMARELRERELARE
ERBHRRPEBUEAARTRELRER
LrEER)

Q@ B R E ARG R A 8 Times Property Holdings Limited

17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(CONT'D)

Company (Cont’d)

The English names of certain group companies registered in
the PRC represent management’s best effort to translate their
Chinese names as they do not have official English names.

Note:

(a) Subsidiaries whose statutory financial statements were not audited by
Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firms of the Ernst &
Young global network.

# Pursuant to certain financing arrangements entered into between the

Group and certain independent alternative financing companies during
the year 2014, the entire equity interest in Guangzhou Zhuorui and a
40% equity interest in Zhuhai Jiayu were legally transferred to those
alternative financing companies so as to secure the relevant borrowings
totalling RMB449,386,000 as at 31 December 2014 (31 December
2013: Nil) (note 29(e)) provided to Zhuhai Jiayu. Prior to the equity
transfer, Guangzhou Shengyu and Guangzhou Zhuorui respectively held
60% and 40% equity interests in Zhuhai Jiayu.

Under the afore-stated arrangements, the Group was endowed a
preferential right to repurchase the equity interest in Guangzhou Zhuorui
at an agreed amount within a specific period in the future. Furthermore,
the Group retains the power to operate and manage Guangzhou Zhuorui
and Zhuhai Jiayu (collectively referred to as the “Project Companies”) in
terms of ordinary businesses and the day-to-day operation.

In this regard, considering the facts that the substance of
the financing arrangements is to collateralise the borrowings
for project development and the Group retains the practical
ability to govern the financial and operating policies of the
Project Companies so as to obtain benefits from their operating
activities, the directors of the Company are of the view that
the financial position and operating results of these Project
Companies should be consolidated into the Group’s financial
statements in full, irrespective of the equity transfer from legal
perspective.



18. RBELNTIMRE

18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

AEBBE NG ZFBEOT Particluars of the Group’s associates are as follows:
rEEERL
BREAEZEFD L
HMREEN ERLPAY | Percentage of equity
=g 2% H 5 BANEE interests attributable FTEEK
Nominal to the Group
value of +=ZA=+-H
Place and date registered/ 31 December
of registration paid-up Z—Z-—MNUFE —T—=%F
Name and business capital 2014 2013  Principal activities
ARMFT
RMB’000
BMNTRARAFREERAA A HEL T B 11,000 30 30 WERE
(TEMERAE]) —E——F=A+H Property
Guangzhou Times Hongwei PRC/ development
Investment Company Limited * Mainland China
(“Guangzhou Times Hongwei”)* 10 March 2011
EMNTEERRESNEEN B B A 200,000 20 20 &
BOERRARANTEMBE]D ZT—Z=F Money lending
Guangzhou Baiyun Heyintaifu +=-A=H
Micro-credit Co., Ltd. " PRC/
(“Guangzhou Baiyun”)* Mainland China
3 December 2012
* ZENTRERNNMBRERKEE B LK * The financial statements of these companies for the years were not

B BTS2 ok BT BN F IS AT R B AE M Eo A

KRB REIEZ -

X I ER Y S

ZE AT AFMEAER KSR - 8%
RBZEXHEIAARBEERSAZLS
AR X EREEMS °

C AREEZBER

&
=T
S\
AN

AREAYAEEL FERX -

TRIRAE BB E QR LE R XL

audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of the
Ernst & Young global network.

A The English names of these companies represent the best effort made
by the directors of the Company to directly translate their Chinese names
as they do not register any official English names.

The Group’s associates are considered not material to the
Group, either individually or in aggregate.

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial
information of the Group’s associates that are not individually

TERNBEIBER .
material:
—E-OF =4
2014 2013
AR%F ARBETFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FE 5 F A& R 5] F) Share of the associates’ profit for the year 4,160 2,371
L E R RNBEESE WA Share of the associates’ total comprehensive income 4,160 2,371
REBREBENRIMEER Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s
BHRTE B investments in the associates 49,465 45,304

AE B EER SRR BN A MR

RMTET24R R EE -

The Group's balances with its associates are disclosed in note
24 to the consolidated financial statements.
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19. EERINEERAR 19. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES
BLEREEE Deferred tax assets
WEMRELHBEE BN T The movements in deferred tax assets during the reporting

period are as follows:

FEEtRIE
T EER REMT
REER BE NAERZEH Hit @t
Accruals
and other
deductible
Provision temporary
Tax losses for LAT differences Others Total

ARBTR ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000

RZZE—=%—F—H At1January 2013 44,899 21,945 15,041 1619 83,504
Credited/(debited) to the
FERGEBER consalidated statement
A/ (18) of profit or loss during
(KzE10) the year (note 10) (21,932) 4,208 19,406 (449) 1,233
R-F—=F
+-A=+—HRE® At31 December 2013 and
—E-NFE—-F—H at 1 January 2014 22,967 26,153 34,447 1,170 84,737
Credited to the
consolidated statement
FERGABEREER of profit or loss during
A (KFE10) the year (note 10) 49,885 63,035 11,917 — 124,837
RZE—NF
+-A=1+—8H At 31 December 2014 72,852 89,188 46,364 1,170 209,574

<>® B R E ARG R A 8 Times Property Holdings Limited



19. BEERFEERAK(HE) 19. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES (CONT’D)

EEHIEEE Deferred tax liabilities
REPRELEHBEEEZEHNOT The movements in deferred tax liabilities during the reporting

period are as follows:

H
W WEAR
AEREHEH RE AOEANE
AAEERE MEEMR HBE @t
Fair value Taxes on
adjustment Revaluation  undistributed
arising from of  profits of the
acquisition of investment subsidiaries
subsidiaries properties in the PRC Total

ARBTRT ARETRT ARETRT ARETR
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000

RZZE—=%—H—H At 1 January 2013 (1,112,764) (187,625) (3,037) (1,303,426)
W B A A Acquisition of a subsidiary (8,422) — — (8,422)
Credited/(debited) to the consolidated
FERGEBRERIA/ statement of profit or loss during
($0B%) (B 3£ 10) the year (note 10) 126,610 (10,500) (28,512) 87,598
RZF—=F+-FA=+—H  At31 December 2013 and at
ERZZE—MFE—F—H 1 January 2014 (994,576) (198,125) (31,549) (1,224,250)
Credited/(debited) to the consolidated
FERGABRERIA statement of profit or loss during
(%) (K5 10) the year (note 10) 206,726 (14,450) (15,370) 176,906
RZZ—NE+-A=1+—H8  At31 December 2014 (787,850) (212,575) (46,919) (1,047,344)
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—F—MF+= A=-+—H 31 December 2014

19. BEERFEERAK(HE) 19. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND

R-ZE-—NOFE+-_A=+—H A%E
FTEETEANMBINBOTEEBES
AR % 182,228,000 (=& — =% :
AR 130,919,0007T) * ZFEHEA
BELAZFETHES  NEE2EHZ
NEBRERTAE o 2 & B E 5%
EEEEIAEEREEE RELBRE
ZHBABACE2E —RER  XRB/T
RAEEELERRBABABHER AR

1B

RERBECEMSTE  BERFTERA
WK ERELEERENERE
FEHR BRI 10% NFEHIB - ZIERE
KEZZEENF-A-BHELER EF
RE_ZEZELF+_A=+—HREER
By & o a0 B A B AN AR R P A
EDAEBERAATKHE - BAERAR
EEMBE - At AKEARERF
BAK L zMBRA® TR NF—
A-—RRBEEXZENDIKZEHBMNTE
-

I gt AR SR B A R B A RS 2 T B R
ARZZE-HF+_RA=+—HZRXK
&M ARK2162655000m(=
T—-=%: ARK%1,087,321,0007T )
PR ZEMBERELEHRE EFR
R ZEMBRARANAIAERNRRAKR
AN KB BAN

<>® B R E ARG R A 8 Times Property Holdings Limited

LIABILITIES (CONT’D)

Partial tax losses of the Group of RMB182,228,000 as at
31 December 2014 (2013: RMB130,919,000) respectively,
mainly arose in Mainland China, which can be carried forward
for a definite period from the year in which the losses arose
for offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies
in which the losses arose. Deferred tax assets have not been
recognised in respect of these losses as they have arisen in
subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time and it
is not considered probable that taxable profits will be available
against which the tax losses can be utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established in
Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1 January
2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A
lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes
on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established
in Mainland China in respect of earnings generated from 1
January 2008.

No deferred tax has been recognised for withholding
taxes that would be payable on the unremitted earnings
of RMB2,162,655,000 as at 31 December 2014 (2013:
RMB1,087,321,000) that are subject to withholding taxes
of the Group’s subsidiaries established in Mainland China.
In the opinion of the directors, it is not probable that these
subsidiaries will distribute such earnings in the foreseeable
future.



20. FAEPME 20. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

—E-NEF —E—=F
2014 2013
AR% Tt AR¥® T
RMB’000 RMB’000
TEER TARBART Properties under development expected
Py to be recovered:
—FR Within one year 8,249,354 6,929,837
—F1& After one year 9,055,626 6,287,896
17,304,980 13,217,733
NEBRERYEHCAL TR BRI IR The Group’s properties under development are all located in
REAMEYERNHEE LM - Mainland China and situated on leasehold land with long term
leases.
AEBETHERYWER-_ZT—UER At 31 December 2014 and 2013, certain of the Group’s
—E—=F+-_A=1t—HDEEBETIR properties under development were pledged to banks and
TREMERA  UWEEBRTFTAEERD other lenders to secure the bank loans and borrowings granted
IRITEZRMER (M E29(c)) ° to the Group (note 29(c)).
21. BRETHEHENDE 21. COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR
SALE
AEBEDRTIHELNENYEMRF The Group’s completed properties held for sale are located
Wb o FTEE % THIEHENYETIIK in Mainland China. All completed properties held for sale are
ARSI R EME 2RIEKEYE - stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
ERTEEEENYENREREE The movement in the provision for impairment of completed
mr properties held for sale is as follows:
—E—MF —E—=F
2014 2013
AR¥FT AR¥TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
W1A1H At 1 January — 1,665
EREAREREKES6) Impairment losses reversed (note 6) — (1,665)
W12 A31H At 31 December — —
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—F—MF+= A=-+—H 31 December 2014

22. BB SRR 22. TRADE RECEIVABLES
AEBZENEZZTEEZTERAHEEY The Group’s trade receivables mainly arise from the sale of
X DHEME HERBEEIZAR properties. Considerations in respect of the properties sold are
EEWREREIN - BIRE Z B payable by the purchasers in accordance with the terms of the
B -EBWESHRBERESHANEBHmER related sale and purchase agreements. Trade receivables are
THEELEAREE - non-interest-bearing. The carrying amounts of trade receivables

approximate to their fair values due to their short-term maturity.

MEBMRNERE SHBERE DT An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the
: reporting period is as follows:

7

—E-mF —E—=F
2014 2013
AR%FT AR% Tt
RMB’000 RMB’000
=@AR Within 3 months 1,087,096 461,843
M= EA 4 to 6 months 6,148 796
+t=+-@A 7 to 12 months 13,612 6,870
HBE—F Over 1 year 118,021 3,023
1,224,877 472,532
R_E—NFEFLR_ZEE—=9+=H The balances of the trade receivables as at 31 December 2014
S+—HZEWZE S HRIEATEI KB and 2013 were neither past due nor impaired and related to a
B A BE BEZZXRETRER large number of diversified customers for whom there was no
MNEFAEM MZEEPROTEED recent history of default.
FOEE o
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23. AR - & RHEMEL 23. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

] RECEIVABLES
—E-@ImF —F—=F
2014 2013
AR¥F AR T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AN B EFKIE Prepayments for leasehold land 344,642 1,201,594
e RE A ERFIE Deposits and other receivables 1,060,417 251,963
E 48508 Other prepayments 467,522 442,067
1,872,581 1,895,624
FENIE - He N E M EW T T EK Prepayments, deposits and other receivables are unsecured,
B8 BXRBETFEEZHR - non-interest-bearing and have no fixed term of repayment.
Bt AHERBIEGR I FAERFZ TP Prepayments for leasehold land represent the prepayments for
AENBAE B I - leasehold land with the application of land use right certificates
being processed.
24. BB EAFHNRIEA 24. AMOUNT DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATE
—E—MF —E—=F
2014 2013
AR¥FT AR¥TFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
QAN Due from an associate:
— BN RALE — Guangzhou Times Hongwel 222,110 70,210
222,110 70,210
JEWNEE R RIMFRIBHIEE S MHE « & The amount due from an associate is non-trade in nature,
28 BRERKERE - BUKE unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. The
BENRMRENEESEEOEARE carrying amount of the amount due from an associate
B ZERBFIEB AR BIIRE - approximates to its fair value. None of these receivables is

either past due or impaired.
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—F—MF+= A=-+—H 31 December 2014

25. MMM HFEHRR

(a) FERBIK

25. TAX PREPAYMENTS/TAX PAYABLE

(a)

Tax prepayments

—E—NF —ET—=F
2014 2013
AR%F AR Frx
RMB’000 RMB’000
TER D EFTISH Prepaid CIT 67,145 26,380
TEA T I E T Prepaid LAT 209,415 195,969
276,560 222,349

(b) FEHBIR (b) Tax payable
—E—NEF —E—=4F
2014 2013
AR¥Fx AR¥Fx
RMB’000 RMB’000
JEH S CIT payable 580,507 283,004
FEBL I E T LAT payable 356,749 114,892
937,256 397,896

Q@ B R E ARG R A 8 Times Property Holdings Limited



26. e RB&FRYMLIRZR 26.
Hl R ITHFER

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS

Group Company
rEH /N

—F-mF —T-=F —F-NF T =F

2014 2013 2014 2013
ARBTR ARMTIT ARETR ARETT
RMB’000  RMBO00O ~ RMB'000  RMB'000

Re RRITHES Cash and bank balances 5,417,585 3,667,564 151,293 785,876
B ZRHIERITE R Less: Restricted bank deposits
(Kt5E (a)) (note (a)) (2,691,848) (1,946,083) (1,282)

HehBeEEY Cash and cash equivalents 2,725,737 1,721,481 150,011 785,876

AR E(HE (b))  Denominated in RMB (note (b)) 2,662,816 887,194 89,517 —

NE A & EHE Denominated in other currencies 62,921 834,287 60,494 785,876
2,725,737 1,721,481 150,011 785,876

Bt - Notes:

(a)  MEPEMEBEE  AEENE TYWEME
ARBAREERITEFFER—ESEND
WEERSRERRNERAR R —H
F+ZA=+—H0 ZEZREIBREAAR
#2,127,728,000TT(=F — = F: AR¥
1,099,672,0007T) °

R-E—WNE+-_A=1+—HE&EEA
#350,911,00070(= T — = F: AR
757,499,000 7T ) 8 % IR #1177 73X 8 R R 47 f5
EZEREEPRMNERMERE  BESBR
TR - HEEFERAZIBRHETER -
R-Z—WE+-_A=+t—HL2EEAR
#213,209,000t(= T — = F: AR M
88,912,000 7T ) &) Tl &4 = BR Il 77 5% A 7 #11F
= He AR 150,000,000 TTE/EHEIE - LA
BWERTFAEEMNRTER(ZZE—=ZF: A
R ¥ 70,000,000 7T) (£ 29(c)) °

(b) B2 - R iRP BT R 9 SNE E Bl AERIAR
ERER  ARBTHAREBKELES -
TR b RF 7 SR (B 3B it B IR M 32 5 36755
HIRTT - AR L BREMER -

FRRRITOBSBRIBERITEAERA
R F BN RFEANSWA - RE KK
TEEBYURERHRTERNER S
BMEOERAAEE - RITHEREZR
RITERBERNOREBEDOCERAE
BRIFHIRTT ©

(a) Pursuant to the relevant regulations in the PRC, certain property
development companies of the Group are required to place certain
amounts of pre-sale proceeds received in designated bank accounts for
specific use. As at 31 December 2014, such restricted cash amounted
to RMB2,127,728,000 (2013: RMB1,099,672,000).

The restricted deposits as at 31 December 2014 amounting to
RMB350,911,000 (2013: RMB757,499,000) represented the loan
proceeds in the monitoring accounts designated by the banks, in
which case the use of the restricted bank deposit is subject to the
banks’ approval. The remaining restricted deposits amounting to
RMB213,209,000 (2013: RMB88,912,000) were primarily time deposits
as at 31 December 2014, out of which RMB150,000,000 were pledged
for bank borrowings granted to the Group (2013: RMB70,000,000) (note
29(c)).

(b) The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however,
subject to the relevant rules and regulations of foreign exchange
control promulgated by the PRC government, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to
conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest income at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. The carrying amounts of the cash and
cash equivalents and the restricted bank deposits approximate
to their fair values. The bank balances and restricted bank
deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent
history of default.
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27. B RBERIA 27. TRADE PAYABLES
ERBEEHHRBREHARENE HHIE An aged analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the
ZHREDTMT reporting period, based on invoice date, is as follows:

—E-OF —E—=F
2014 2013
AR% Tt AR¥Fix
RMB’000 RMB’000
—F R Within 1 year 2,681,934 1,906,519
— 1% Over 1 year 874,134 507,343
3,556,068 2,413,862
FENESHBEIEER .- 22 - BRIE The trade payables are unsecured, non-interest-bearing and
HAR RN N EREEE - repayable within the normal operating cycle or on demand.
RER R ENESREBNAALEBE The fair values of trade payables at the end of the reporting
BMNENRENEDSSE RAENE period approximated to their corresponding carrying amounts
S AR R - due to their relatively short maturity terms.

<>® B R E ARG R A 8 Times Property Holdings Limited
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28. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

—E-F —ZE—=F

2014 2013

AR®F AR®Fr

RMB’000 RMB’000

B YR e & FEWGRIE Deposits received and receipts in advance 8,530,918 7,487,978

FEETFRIE K EH b fE S 508 Accruals and other payables 1,504,329 369,841

WHEIE B A B 2 FE 3R Payables for acquisition of project companies 360,000 625,000

FERT T B Interest payable 181,692 25,150
BER: S ESERR:Y) Other payables to the

Ho b e3R8 (M 5E) non-controlling shareholders (note) 140,404 363,585

MBI IREE TR ENFIE  Payables to independent investors — 521,247

10,717,343 9,392,801

ftat

MNTE—NER-_Z—=F+_"F=+—H  @|IkFELE
A% A% B 32 T A JE T SR IB 2 1B IR B B A RIE I N

Note:

Details of other payables to the non-controlling shareholders as at 31 December
2014 and 2013 are set out by project company as follows:

T

—E2-NF —E-=F
2014 2013
ARMFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BEIMNmEE Guangzhou Nanying 0 62,778 62,778
B R ER Guangzhou Tiansi ii) 47,626 47,626
Bt e E Guangzhou Lvdi Baiyun i — 238,181
BNEEE Guangzhou Guangdechang ii) 30,000 15,000
140,404 363,585

)] LR BIE RN E N R IR AR AR SR 2 SRR o 0} The balances mainly represented the payables to the non-

ii)

HERNFABHREETOE(ZEDEZL
BEREERIFERRRAE)ER - LEER
ER T IRIR AR A R B 4 FR IR AR AR SR P 2 2
BBNEBMEESR I TETAE - ZFRE
NHRERREBEZEPNEEBRARPFAS
OFR o RIBAREEIFZERERN T — =4
T A=+ R GE - EHREN
E &% AR 62,778,000 7T +45 #% % & fF
I ©

MEERIEIR R AR IR R 2 AR - %
RERTYEIRIR - %8 - AREBEEERAR -

controlling shareholder of Guangzhou Nanying. Such payable
balances were in connection with certain properties, the
economic benefits of which solely attributable to the non-
controlling shareholder, and where appropriate measured
by reference to the market value of the associating asset
balances, reflecting the Group’s obligation to the non-controlling
shareholder. Changes in the fair values of those payables are
credited/charged to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss. Pursuant to a supplementary agreement entered into
between the Group and the non-controlling shareholder as at 31
December 2013, it is mutually agreed to settle such payables at
a fixed amount of RMB62,778,000.

ii) Balances represented the balances to the non-controlling

shareholders of the project companies which were non-secured,
interest-free and with no fixed term of repayment.

2014 £ E R & Annual Report 2014 ®<>
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ZZ—F+=H=+—H 31 December 2014

29. At RBITERR A MER 29. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS AND
OTHER BORROWINGS
“E-mf —E-=F
2014 2013
BRA= il ¢E  ERA=E |5 + 8
Effective Effective
interest rate Maturity Amount interest rate Maturity Amount
(%) AR¥EFT (%) AREFTL
% RMB’000 % RMB'000
TE Current
BOIER-EHH Bank loans - unsecured 6.7-8.7 2015 537,815 6.5-6.7 2014 31,000
FITEF-BHEA Bank loans - secured 5.7-8.7 2015 365,950 59-11.0 2014 1,422,143
Hibfa R — BE A Other borrowings — unsecured 9.2 2015 71,000 44-69 2014 283,713
Hibfa R -6 H A Other borrowings — secured 11.1-13.0 2015 811,512 5.4-12.9 2014 240,638
1,786,277 1,977,494
k) Non-current
BOTER-EEA Bank loans — unsecured 7.3-8.4 2016 778,211 6.8 2016 254,152
BOIER-BHEF Bank loans - secured 5.9-11.1 2016-2023 2,601,777 5477 20152023 4,212,505
Hitfg 3 — || Other borrowings — unsecured 9.2-13.3 2016 416,088 - - —
HibfEs—BH A Other borrowings — secured 8.8-12.8 2016-2017 1,892,386 9.1-12.9 2015 958,397
BEAERE-BHA
(Hzg) Senior notes - secured (note g) 11.2-13.5 2017-2019 3,316,642 — — —
9,005,104 5,425,054
10,791,381 7,402 548

<>® B R E ARG R A 8 Times Property Holdings Limited



29. MIBRMITERR EMER 29. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS AND
(#) OTHER BORROWINGS (CONT’D)
—E—MF —E—=%F
2014 2013
AR¥FT ARETFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
DT Analysed into:
EEBRITER Bank loans repayable:
—&FR Within one year 903,765 1,453,143
£ i In the second year 2,159,447 1,686,347
(@’a\%%ﬂﬁi) In the third to fifth years, inclusive 1,012,541 2,562,310
HBBEAF Beyond five years 208,000 218,000
4,283,753 5,919,800
H M pEEEER Other borrowings repayable:
—F RN Within one year 882,512 524,351
F_F In the second year 2,065,474 958,397
FE-EFERF
(BEERMTE) In the third to fifth years, inclusive 243,000 —
3,190,986 1,482,748
BEERLES Senior notes repayable:
FZEFDF In the third to fifth years, inclusive 3,316,642 —
(BEEREMTE)
3,316,642 —
10,791,381 7,402,548
BfaE - Notes:
(a) BR—_E—NFER-_TE—=F+-_A=1+— (a) Except for certain non-current other borrowings amounting to RMB5,827

BN R AARBSQIAETLLARE million and RMB1,456 million as at 31 December 2014 and 2013,

(b)

1456 BEETTHE THERBEMMER - ARR
—E-MER-FE-=ZF+_A=+—H&#H
DRR/ARKELIBIABIRARKE0EE
TURIE TR BN IRTT M E A A& FRUA B E MR B
Hh - FISREVIRTT REMEFTIAZ BRI RS -
REERITREMEREEFEEAARE
BEAEE -

BRR-ZZE-—NF+-_A=+—H2BERAR
#1,844,033,000(Z T —=F: AR®
218,091,000 7t ) 19 & T A H MR 1T B R ASE
([ ) BB (DETL D FHESN - ARER
#&iﬁﬂﬂiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ?ﬁ% R E AR A AR
FHE -

(b)

respectively, and certain current bank and other borrowings amounting
to RMB1,031 million and RMB630 million as at 31 December 2014 and
2013, respectively, bearing fixed interest rates, the remaining bank and
other borrowings bear interest at floating rates. The carrying amounts of
the Group’s bank and other borrowings approximate to their fair values.

Except for certain secured bank loans, amounting to RMB1,844,033,000
as at 31 December 2014 (2013: RMB218,091,000) which were
denominated in United States dollars (“USD") and Hong Kong dollars
(“HKD"), all the Group’s bank loans and other borrowings were
denominated in RMB as at the end of the reporting period.

2014 £ E R & Annual Report 2014 @<>
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ZZ—F+=H=+—H 31 December 2014

Y 4=
29. iMfRBITERE KM ER 29. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS AND
= ’
(#]) OTHER BORROWINGS (CONT’D)
Hia () Notes: (Cont'd)
(c) RB|EBR - REENEFTEEDEMRTIRT (c) At the end of the reporting period, certain of the Group’s assets were
REMEZRA  UBRERTFTAEBOHRTER pledged to banks and other lenders for securing the bank loans and
REAER - other borrowings granted to the Group.
ZEEENREER : The carrying values of these assets are:
—E-QmEF —ET-=fF
2014 2013
K AR FR AREFT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
"EME Investment properties 16 1,397,940 1,582,000
FEERYE Properties under development 20 3,443,115 1,847,475
W - BB REE Property, plant, and equipment 14 240,204 —
BRTREHENME Completed properties held for sale 229,123 20,015
AT LA EHIE Prepaid land lease payments 15 682,842 25,300
DEETEHER Pledged time deposit 26 150,000 70,000
6,143,224 3,544,790

(d) R-IE—WFE+—A=+—0 ' NEEZPR
TREMERT  —HAAERDEESE
A AR 600,000,000 (ZFE—=F+=A
Zt+—B: T)NEFUAEE-B2EWE
ARKGIRE M D IESIRMND (EAIKM -

(e) R-ZZE—NFE+=—A=+—0 ' KEBEZIPER
IREMERT  —HAERDEESRE
BAR 449,386,000 (—E—=F+_-A
T+—B:E)NEFNEERAEEZENE
AR EMEHMN 2 MR AR ERIKE - 218
SEMURBEER60% A EAIA o

) R_Z—WE+-_A=+—H 28EHD
BB ANRE63,539,000T(ZF—=4F: AR
#122,462,0007T ) + A R #211,512,000 7T
(ZZ—=% : AR#208,397,0007T) * AR
#300,000,0007T(ZF—=4: &) AR
#300,000,000 T(—F—=4F : &) AR
350,000,000 70 (=T — =4 : #&)ME TR
T LA 5= [ B JB8 A B B N K BT 69 70% AR A 482
# RABBRERS0% B AER  BERES
#)100% M A MR - 65112 E /) 100% I A4
5 R Il K= 89 100% B AR 2 1E B IR -

B R E ARG R A 8 Times Property Holdings Limited

(d)

(e)

(f)

At 31 December 2014, out of the Group’s total bank and other
borrowings, a borrowing amounting to RMB600,000,000 (31 December
2013: Nil) included in the non-current liability, was secured by the
pledge of the entire equity shares of Zhuhai Jinrong, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group.

At 31 December 2014, out of the Group’s total bank and other
borrowings, an amount of RMB449,386,000 (31 December 2013: Nil)
included in the non-current liability, was secured by way of transferring
the entire equity interest in Guangzhou Zhuorui, which is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group. And such amount was also secured by the
pledge of the 60% equity interest in Zhuhai Jiayu.

At 31 December 2014, 70% equity interest in Guangzhou Tiansi,
50% equity interest in Changsha Meiguiyuan, 100% equity interest in
Guangdong Guangchang, 100% equity interest in Foshan Fengrui and
100% equity interest in Foshan Yongheng, which are the subsidiaries
of the Group, were pledged as security for certain borrowings with
aggregate amounts of RMB63,539,000 (2013: RMB122,462,000),
RMB211,512,000 (2013: RMB208,397,000), RMB300,000,000 (2013:
Nil), RMB300,000,000 (2013: Nil) and RMB350,000,000 (2013: Nil),
respectively.
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29. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS AND
OTHER BORROWINGS (CONT’D)

Notes: (Cont'd)

Senior notes

(i)

(i)

“E-NFE N 12.625% ETESL
ES

RZZE—WNFEF=ZA=-+—H "  &AR7A
WEE AL FR99.278% HITAR —F
— N I H3 A & 58 & 225,000,000
(A8 & 7 4 A K #1,383,188,000
JL) M 12.625% B A EH([ =T — Y
FEZABAERKE]D -RZ-T—HF
HFAZH ARAEEEASEN
100.125% BEIN BTN =T — N F
) H AKX £ %8 480,000,000 2 JT(48
B R4 A R 492,640,000 ) 6
12625% BAZE(ZZ—NFAH A
BRER]) - —E—NE=AFLE
BEH-_Z-NERABREZRAHR
HERE—RD - BRI T NEEF
M 12.625% X TEBAEE ] =F
—NED I 12.625% ETBEZE
PERF LM WA T —WE= A
—+—B(BEZA)E12.625% 8
FRIRE - BEFIA R -

ANA R AR BRI - RAASR
FrERAE % 100% B IEREENE
B{E - BEI2HMmEDIH) T —NIF
FEIM12.625% ETLEBAEE - AR
AINAERE-_T—NF=RA=+—
BEEBRONE TEEHENEET
BRI EERELD - —hETHH
12625% % TEA K - BEE T
—NERHIM12.625% £ T B L EHE
MEAMES  F2HARRAHAS
T-ME=f+=AK - —MFEN
AZ+RAMBEBEAL -

W-Z—E+-A=+—H &AL
EE T -NFHEM12.625%F T
B RIBBEEHR - 455,000,000
EXNETELAZEBSEENEB
FFLTRE  BEAEWBERNK
EREEBRPHERS  MaIEL
BRR RGBT WEBY
E=FEBAEEREE AR -

“E-EFEHN10.375% ARKE
ERE

RZZT—mW&ELA+xB ARQ
RIEZEANS EMH100%E TR =
T L FEPHASHLEARARYE
900,000,0007 #710.375% & % Z
BIZT—NMELAEEREKD -
—EZ-NFE+A+MEB ARQAK
ZE RS M 100.125% BITETR
T LFIHASBEAARE
600,000,000 7T #) 10.375% 18 £ Z= 1%
(Z=—HFE+AELEZER]) - =T
—NFEtABEARBE_T-MF+
ABEERBATHEKRE—RY &
WA T+ 3HM10.375% A
REBLER] - —Z—tF3HH
10.375% AR B 5t IR0 B 22 BT E
Y -—E-NFELA+ANE(RE
% B ) LA10.375% B F F K& &
BEFI—R -

()

(ii)

USD 12.625% Senior Notes due 2019

On 21 March 2014, the Company issued 12.625% senior
notes due 2019 in a principal amount of USD225,000,000
(approximately equivalent to RMB1,383,188,000) at
99.278% of the principal amount of such notes (the “Senior
Notes March 2014”). On 2 May 2014, the Company issued
additional 12.625% senior notes due 2019 in a principal
amount of USD80,000,000 (approximately equivalent to
RMB492,640,000) at 100.125% of the principal amount of
such notes (the “Senior Notes May 2014”"). Senior Notes March
2014 and Senior Notes May 2014 consolidated to form a single
series which is referred to as the “USD 12.625% Senior Notes
Due 2019”. The USD 12.625% Senior Notes Due 2019 are
listed on the SEHK and bear interest from and including 21
March 2014 at the rate of 12.625% per annum, payable semi-
annually in arrears.

At any time, the Company may at its option redeem the
USD12.625% Senior Notes Due 2019, in whole but not in part,
at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount
redeemed plus the applicable premium. The USD12.625%
Senior Notes Due 2019 are also redeemable at the option of
the Company at certain predetermined prices in certain specific
periods prior to the maturity date of 21 March 2019. For further
details on the USD12.625% Senior Notes due 2019, please
refer to the related announcements of the Company dated 13
March 2014 and 25 April 2014, respectively.

At 31 December 2014, out of the Group’s total USD 12.625%
Senior Notes due 2019, certain senior notes with a principal
amount of USD5,000,000 were held by Ms. Li Yiping, the
spouse of Mr. Shum. Mr. Shum is deemed to be interested in
these senior notes, which were under normal commercial terms
and had similar conditions to those held by independent third
parties.

RMB 10.375% Senior Notes due 2017

On 16 July 2014, the Company issued 10.375% senior notes
due 2017 in a principal amount of RMB900,000,000 at 100%
of the principal amount of such notes (the “Senior Notes July
2014"). On 14 October 2014, the Company issued additional
10.375% senior notes due 2017 in a principal amount of
RMB600,000,000 at 100.125% of the principal amount of such
notes (the “Senior Notes October 2014"). Senior Notes July
2014 and Senior Notes October 2014 were consolidated to form
a single series which is referred to as the “RMB 10.375% Senior
Note Due 2017". The RMB 10.375% Senior Note Due 2017 are
listed on the SEHK and bear interest from and including 16 July
2014 at the rate of 10.375% per annum, payable semi-annually
in arrears.
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ZZ—F+=H=+—H 31 December 2014

29. ?féﬁjﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁiﬂﬂﬁ% 29.

Hia ()

(g BrRRE(E)
(ii) —E—tFEHM10.375% ARBE
FERE)

RRQB A REBREMER - ZESR
FRIEE A4 %8 100% 3 hnid A% B 5
BEEE BO2dmELs> T+
FRIHN10.375% AREEBEERE -
ARARMAIBEE_T—+tF LA
+RBEHAMNE TIETHERR
ETHELECERER -_Z—tF3
HI#)10.375% ARMERZK - BH
T EFEHHM10.375% ARBE
EEBRHEMFE  FE2HEAQFA
HAEZT-—NFLtAt+AR=ZZ—NO
F+ANBREBRE -

NEAMBRRERZELERBEEWT

INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS AND
OTHER BORROWINGS (CONT’D)

Notes: (Cont'd)

(g)

Senior notes (Cont'd)

(ii) RMB 10.375% Senior Notes due 2017 (Cont'd)

At any time, the Company may at its option redeem the RMB
10.375% Senior Note Due 2017, in whole but not in part, at
a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount
redeemed plus the applicable premium. The RMB 10.375%
Senior Notes due 2017 are also redeemable at the option of the
Company at certain predetermined prices in certain specific
periods prior to the maturity date of 16 July 2017. For further
details on the RMB 10.375% Senior Notes due 2017, please
refer to the related announcements of the Company dated 10
July 2014 and 8 October 2014, respectively.

The senior notes recognised in the consolidated financial statements are
calculated as follows:

—E—tFIY —E-hFIH
#10.375% #12.625%
AREBEBXERE ETBEBEERE
RMB 10.375% USD 12.625%
Senior Notes Senior Notes Fob
due 2017 due 2019 Total
AR¥Fr AR¥Fr AR¥FT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
RZZT—MF—A—HMRE$E Carrying amount as at 1 January 2014 — — —
FREEIT Issuance during the year 1,500,000 1,875,828 3,375,828
LB Transaction costs (30,543) (55,279) (85,822)
FEZH Interest charged 59,433 183,680 243,113
FT A EL A FE (S 5R08 K AT SR IE Interest payable included in
K FEHFILE other payables and accruals (56,281) (177,184) (233,465)
VE 5% Exchange realignment 16,988 16,988
R-Z—-ME+-A=+—HHK Carrying amount as at
BRES% 31 December 2014 1,472,609 1,844,033 3,316,642

BRFEBRASEE TRPBERINEMAL
R A B (TP A BIERA D KR R AE R
HER - WAZEHBRTERAZETRN
YRR

ZE-NFIHHENI2.625% E LB ARER

T+ FHHMN10375% AREEREER
DR 13.5% K% 11.2% I BHEF RS o

<>® B R E ARG R A 8 Times Property Holdings Limited

The senior notes are jointly and severally guaranteed by certain
subsidiaries of the Group which are incorporated outside the PRC
(“Subsidiary Guarantors”) and are secured by the pledge of certain
shares of such Subsidiary Guarantors.

The effective interest rates of USD 12.625% Senior Notes due 2019
and RMB 10.375% Senior Notes due 2017 are 13.5% and 11.2%,
respectively.



30. AR RS

RZT—WMFLA=+HB  ARAHK
AEREEO100% ETR —_F— NLF2H
N & 48 %8 /388,000,000 % 7T (48 & R
#) A R % 308,369,000 7T ) #) 7] # % (&
F(IAMmEkER])  BA#REFER
EEMERHMARAR LT - AT
BEFRFNEB%FTE - ARFELER
X BAKEETHEARLRRE
RIEHHELR -

EEFBEABERBERBREZEHGX
MR EREEEEATRRES &R AT
B EHFEERE AR A TR
TzBROUFHFERG D) EASZ AR
BEHIERR - B ¥ RXE3.50%8
TETE TEBERRERNTHERERHSE
BES AJBRBREFSITEHBARARQ
RAIEREEO.LB TR L ER(E
%5 110,857, 142 5 B BD AR
A BETHBROERAN T BREALY
6.05%) - AR R EFNE Z 1S
BEL2MAQRFTEHA-_T—NFLAL
Bk—Z—NWF+A-+RHHNBEBA

=

RN FE+ A -+ R B WKERETH
% & % BT 15 5 T8 ¥ 58 383,668,000 %
TT(FHE R AR 306,213,0007T) ° &
NAEBAERBEFEAEERE - BMR
SEEEMBEBENBEE -

BEE-T-WFT-_A=+—H " #HE
S ] A R AR R 5

30. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 25 July 2014, the Company issued Convertible Bonds due
2019, in the aggregate principal amount of HKD388,000,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB308,369,000) (the
“Convertible Bonds”) at the price of 100% of their principal
amount and the Convertible Bonds were listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The Convertible Bonds bear
interest at the rate of 8% per annum and payable quarterly in
arrears and were jointly and severally guaranteed by certain
subsidiaries of the Group.

Subject to the terms of the Convertible Bonds, the bondholders
have the right to convert their Convertible Bonds into shares
to be allotted and issued by the Company upon conversion of
the Convertible Bonds (“New Shares”) at any time during the
conversion period at the conversion price then in effect. Based
on the initial conversion price of HKD3.50 and assuming full
conversion of the Bonds at the initial conversion price, the
Convertible Bonds will be convertible into convertible into fully
paid ordinary shares with a par value of HKDO.1 each of the
Company, equally 110,857,142 New Shares, approximately
6.05% of the ordinary share capital of the Company, as
enlarged by the issue of New Shares. For further details of the
Convertible Bonds, please refer to the related announcements
of the Company dated 7 July 2014 and 25 July 2014.

The net proceeds from issuance of the Convertible Bonds
of HKD383,668,000 (equivalent to RMB306,213,000) were
received on 25 July 2014. The Company used the net proceeds
for the refinancing, redemption or other repayment of existing
financial indebtedness.

Up to 31 December 2014, there was no conversion or
redemption of the Convertible Bonds.
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—F—MF+= A=-+—H 31 December 2014

30. AIRER R % (¥8)

ABRRESFEEIAFSRANSRITE

30. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (CONT'D)

The Convertible Bonds were recognised as embedded financial

TERBEHRIWOT : derivatives, and a debt component as follows:
—E-mF
2014
AR¥ Tt
RMB’000
RAFEBBTARKRESEE Nominal value of the Convertible Bonds issued
during the year 308,369
B mMARNERITET A Less: Embedded financial derivatives (115,241)
Direct transaction costs attributed to

BEHIEEEEIZKE the debt component (2,156)
RZE—WOFLA=Z+AHHA

TR ERNEBELD Debt component on initial recognition as at 25 July 2014 190,972
FERX Interest expense 14,898
=ENEESS Interest paid (10,035)
ME 5 38 B Exchange realignment 1,383
RZE—MF+=A=+—H

maEBs (KiEa) Debt component as at 31 December 2014 (note a) 197,218
RZZFE—WOFELAZTHABER Embedded-financial derivative on initial recognition

BRNBRAXSRITELA as at 25 July 2014 115,241
AIMRESITESR T A Changes in fair value of the derivative component

MO AR BEZS of the Convertible Bonds 4,767
ME 5, 58 B Exchange realignment 879
RZE-—WOF+—A=+—HH Embedded financial derivatives as at

BmARNEBITETA(KED) 31 December 2014 (note b) 120,887
R-E—NFE+-_A=+—HH Convertible Bonds as at 31 December 2014 318,105

AR ES

PEE - Notes:

a) BEIDBEANEBEVHER  LAAVHA a) Debt component is initially recognised at its fair value, which is the
RS FTIEFENRRARERITET residual amount after deducting the fair value of the embedded financial
ARNrhBEEANFSHESE  HEBEZRERFMNX derivatives from the net proceeds at the initial recognition, and it is
17.9% KA # SR AR5 B © subsequently carried at amortised costs at an effective interest rate of

17.9% per annum.
b) BARNETRITETEBERRESEE AN b) Embedded financial derivatives comprise the fair value of the option of

BRERS AR ES LB A AR E B B AR
BRENQAEBE: TRREFHAEAZRLAR
AREBEEFAEREODAEE AR
ARBEE AR ESNERENDAEE -

<>® B R E ARG R A 8 Times Property Holdings Limited

the holders of the Convertible Bonds to convert the Convertible Bonds
into ordinary shares of the Company at the conversion price; the fair
value of the option of the holders of the Convertible Bonds to require
the Company to redeem the Convertible Bonds; and the fair value of the
option of the Company to redeem the Convertible Bonds.



30. _Iﬁﬂﬁ{aﬁ(ﬁa)

(%)

HZERANEERAEERE  EET R
BREAIRITEE o Bt ZEEEETASEA
R AR —HEEITETA -

AERESFHB LS EEGEEMPEHTEE
A RBRBERARR - E—NFEA=+H
AN—Z—ME+-A=+—H#TEE =
BAREBEFERAXNSRITETANG
B AABEFERANEZTAERE AL

30.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (CONT'D)

b) (Cont'd)

These embedded options are interdependent as only one of these
options can be exercised. Therefore, they are not able to be accounted
for separately and a single compound derivative was recognised.

A valuation on the Convertible Bonds has been performed by Jones
Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and Advisory Limited, an independent
qualified valuer, on 25 July 2014 and 31 December 2014. The binomial
model is used in the valuation of the embedded financial derivatives. The
quantitative information about fair value measurements using significant

B(EIE)ERT - unobservable inputs (Level 3) is as below:
R=2—m ¢
+=ZA=+-— TAHE
Bl B’JA‘M"E HEFE BWABE 23
Fair value at
31 December Valuation Unobservable
Description 2014 technique Inputs Adopted
BAXESRITETA 150,110,0007% 7T ZIERER BHFEE®) 11.84%
Embedded financial derivatives HKD150,110,000 Binomial Model Credit Spread (i)
IR 8 (i) 49.34%
Volatility (ii)

M

i FIERAMES RE2EZERTREREFER
R E b M ET e 30 T A (ShE5 ) o s K i
el

i. RBERIE D ERR X R RIRIBEE

EFEELAARSBRARSRITETANAREE
BN ROREIEMA AR E S RARERITET AN
‘ﬁ*f“@i‘ﬁﬂ o

BAXSRITETANEERE TEIBBRNSEE
BFE > MREBRREARAEFENREGBHEL -

Notes:

The credit spread adopted is determined with reference to the yield of
other non-convertible instrument (or bonds) having the similar quality
rating and similar investment characteristics.

ii. The volatility adopted was based on the average of the peer companies’
volatilities.

The increase in credit spread may result in increase in the fair value of embedded
financial derivatives. Increase in volatility may also result in increase in the fair
value of embedded financial derivatives.

The value of embedded financial derivatives varies with different variables of

certain subjective assumptions, which have been made by the directors of the
Company based on their best estimates.
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31. &

)

31. SHARE CAPITAL

Shares

—B-RF —F-=
2014 2013

ETE Authorised:
10,000,000,000 f& 10,000,000,000
(ZZ—=% :10,000,000,000f%)
Tk SREE0.105T

(2013:10,000,000,000)
ordinary shares of HKDO.10 each

1,000,000,000 % 7
HKD1,000,000,000

1,000,000,000 % &
HKD1,000,000,000

BEETREAR:
1,722,960,000 & (ZF— =4 -
1,722,960,000 i ) &% -
BREE0.10BT

Issued and fully paid:

1,722,960,000 (2013: 1,722,960,000)
ordinary shares of HKDO.10 each

172,296,000 & 7t
HKD172,296,000

172,296,000 & 7
HKD172,296,000

i

i3

i Equivalent to

AR¥ 135,778,000 ¢
RMB135,778,000

AE# 135,778,000 7
RMB135,778,000

Q@ B R E ARG R A 8 Times Property Holdings Limited

There was no movement in share capital during the year.



32. MRARHERTR

ARABETHEERESS (T8 B
) B B B Y K SR (B 2 B R TH 1F L B RR
MABR2EE - -FENGERSAE
BREARBAEAESR  EEEREXE
5o BN ET BI A IRFRE P My (R K
RERZEE -FEARBENR_-_T—=F
T—A+TABRAEHDBEENEZE
BEFEORZRMER - Wi RAAHRE
FHI0FHBEABA ML AER -

BRERNDABRM AN - RRARRIE
s8I R AN R HE A fE I ET &L TR
ZHBEBRERTRERAZETZROK
S8E ARTHBBEELTAYSET
B fh 48 8t 2 10% (BN 172,296,000 % i%
) ETBBBITRHERTRMNDARZ
30% ° FREAR A PBRALEIN - AL
TZEAHE ERTRERARAMR
BEzBRERRETERARITEZ
BRE)BITERS TRITZROERT
FSHEBCDHEITRNHEBMN 1% -

ERARBFARIBREREN ZE
BMR1.008T - RiIEBEREAAERND
ZHEHEEE2RBERE  ERE
fERT - ZHETFBERENEE
o A R M 51 B AL HE B BRE R 10 4F -

RITEREASFE D 2BREMEITZ
BEBHZRBESHEFSLEE
EEAGERTIN&ESE  (DED
AM(ERBRAMAMETESEENA
FIMI e B WERMIIH LB K
MmE: (NEERHBHATREL XA
R EREXRMAIIRD EXFHES
& K (i) RipEE -

BR=-F—=F+—AB+LB&EMATE
- BLEARRA ) LA R B o

32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group's
operations. Eligible participants of the Scheme include any
employee, management member or director of the Company,
or any other eligible participants upon the terms set out in the
Scheme. The Scheme was adopted pursuant to the resolutions
of all the shareholders passed on 19 November 2013 (the
“Adoption Date”) and shall be valid and effective for a period of
10 years commencing on the Adoption Date.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Scheme and
other share option schemes of the Company shall not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of shares in issue
as at the Listing Date (i.e., 172,296,000 shares), unless the
Company obtains approval from its shareholders and must not
exceed 30% of the total number of shares in issue from time to
time. The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to each grantee (including both
exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month period
shall not exceed 1% of the total number of shares in issue,
unless approval of the Company’s shareholders is obtained.

The amount payable by the grantee on application or
acceptance of an option shall be HKD1.00. The period within
which the shares must be taken up under an option shall be
determined by the board at its absolute discretion and in any
event, such period shall not be longer than 10 years from the
date upon which any particular option is granted in accordance
with the Scheme.

The subscription price in respect of each share issued pursuant
to the exercise of an option granted under the Scheme shall be
solely determined by the board and shall not be less than the
highest of: (i) the official closing price of the shares as stated
in the SEHK'’s daily quotation sheet on the date of grant, which
must be a day on which the SEHK is open for the business
of dealing in securities; (ii) the average of the official closing
prices of the SEHK’s daily quotation sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of a Share.

Since the adoption of the Scheme on 19 November 2013, no
options have been granted pursuant to the Scheme.
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33. f#fm

REH
(a) AEERAFERBEFENRE

(b)

(c)

(d)

@ B R E ARG R A 8 Times Property Holdings Limited

SEREBHRARE NGBS
BBED 27 -

HAZE

AEENFABREBRE_TZT
NFTZA=+—"BLEFEHRH
RESEAMRBHELATE AR
Az EEABBRERNDRETAE
RpzBEMEEZEHNER -

BAm#E

EXAfREEERBHEB AR M
FEBREZNBERLT - AASKE
P 7R SR UG B R 4% AP iR 2 AL RO &
B HERFERRR L EHE
RAEW MY RAEDOBERT
AR EMERIEENEIFER
R FEMER -

EEBBAEE

BEPREBEERER &%
EETBEFMAOETRRER—
FLOIMmZBPBEcELTREREA
VR ERIGTE B R & 4T R (K
HEMNBEFENBEE)BEMH
HEAEL BEHBRELATESL
BIETEEARS0% A BEBAM
E—SHBR - ZTBHAES
TAREHEBAEFEE 2 BB
MEXR - Kifn BREEIEES
PESELRBRBRELEBTER
B R 25% °

33. RESERVES

Group

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity of the Group.

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the
difference between the aggregate of the nominal value of
the paid-up capital of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant
to the Reorganisation and the nominal value of the
Company’s shares issued in exchange therefor during
the year ended 31 December 2008.

Capital reserve

Capital reserve represents the difference between the
cost of acquisition and the non-controlling interests
acquired in the case of acquisition of additional non-
controlling interests of subsidiaries, or, the difference
between the proceeds from disposal and the non-
controlling interests disposed of in the case of disposal of
partial equity interests in subsidiaries to non-controlling
shareholders.

Statutory surplus funds

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the
PRC, the companies now comprising the Group which
are registered in the PRC shall appropriate a certain
percentage of their net profit after tax (after offsetting
any prior years’ losses) calculated under the accounting
principles generally applicable to the PRC enterprises
to reserve funds. When the balances of this reserve
fund reaches 50% of the entity’s capital, any further
appropriation is optional. The statutory surplus reserve
can be utilised to offset prior years’ losses or to increase
capital. However, the balance of the statutory surplus
reserve must be maintained at a minimum of 25% of the
capital after these usages.



33. f&fiE(#8) 33. RESERVES (CONT’'D)

¥ YN Company
RARRFEAZ FEESHRIOT The changes in reserves of the Company for the year are set
out as follows:

RORER EXRBEE RitER @t
Share Exchange
fiz Premium fluctuation  Accumulated
Notes account reserve losses Total

ARBTL  ARETT  ARBFT  ARETR
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB000 RMB1000

W-E-=%—F—H At 1 January 2013 1,452,565 (199,734) (13,615) 1,239,216
BB Capitalisation Issue (101,827) - — (101,827)
BELTRRHEET Issue of shares in connection of the Listing 1,188,051 — — 1,188,051

RO ETRE Share issue expenses (57,739) — — (57,739)
FEREFBLE Total comprehensive loss for the year 11 — (33,935) (15913) (49,848)
BIRRE Dividend declared 12 (873913) — — (873913)
“T-CHERERBRR Proposed final 2013 dividend 12 (188,486) - - (188,486)
R-Z-—=F+-F=t-8E

—Z-mE-A-H At 31 December 2013 and 1 January 2014 1,418,651 (233,669) (29,528) 1,155,454

FEREFBLEE Total comprehensive loss for the year 11 — 33,163 (226,047) (192,884)
“E-PERERERE Proposed final 2014 dividend 12 (247,135) = — (247,135)
RZE-WE+-A=T—H At 31 December 2014 1,171,516 (200,506) (255,575) 715,435
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34.

BARRAR
RBERR - AEBERETRITRTH
WIBERREHRER  ZFRBERSR
REAEEMENETBEERHENEZS
ER - REERGR REZEFBEER
REBEBNFE  AEEAERRTEE
BHNBEERANAKREERBALER
FBAMNERSE BEAKEEREEE
HEMENRLXELERE - A5HE
MERBAEBZIBERNIR L AR
e YWREHEMEEZELRER
FHEMARE -RNBEEREG AR
MER-EMFREL -

RBEMRABRRTAEEMEREEN
REBERXMEARTRENERSEN
T -

34. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group provided
guarantees in respect of the mortgage facilities granted by
certain banks relating to the mortgage loans arranged for
certain purchasers of the Group’s properties. Pursuant to the
terms of the guarantees, upon default in mortgage payments
by these purchasers, the Group is responsible to repay the
outstanding mortgage principal together with the accrued
interest and penalty owed by the defaulted purchasers to the
banks, and the Group is entitled to take over the legal titles and
possession of the related properties. The Group’s guarantee
periods start from the dates of grant of the relevant mortgage
loans and end upon the issuance of real estate ownership
certificates which is generally within one to two years after the
purchasers have taken possession of the relevant properties.

The amount of guarantees given to banks for mortgage facilities
granted to the purchasers of the Group’s properties as at the
end of the reporting period is as follows:

—E—OF —F—=F
2014 2013
AR¥F AR F T
RMB’000 RMB’000
MAEEMEETHBEEN Guarantees in respect of the mortgage facilities
BB E IR ENER for certain purchasers of the Group’s properties 6,913,063 4,068,420

35.

<>® B R E ARG R A 8 Times Property Holdings Limited

EERR BEREFOERT - HE
MEHTERFEATAREEREER
BALEREMNE RIS - FIHELK
BB BmERT W ARLERE LS

RERKRGAIER
ARERRT RIS RAIEROEE
BARD 2 515 - BN GRS BT RE M 3T
29 -

35.

The directors consider that in the case of default in payments,
the net realisable value of the related properties can cover the
repayment of the outstanding mortgage principal together with
the accrued interest and penalty, and therefore no provision
has been made in the consolidated financial statements for the
guarantees.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS AND SHARES

Details of the Group's assets and shares pledged for the
bank and other borrowings are included in note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements.



36. EEHRARH

36. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(a) fEREHAA (@) As lessor
AEBRBELHELRHEEEAR The Group leases its investment properties under
HEME BEeHBEAE—=1+ operating lease arrangements, with leases negotiated for
F - HEKF —BRBLEXHERLX terms ranging from one to ten years. The terms of the
HRFES - leases generally also required tenants to pay security
deposits.
REEHR - AEBRET A As at the end of the reporting period, the Group had total
HEZHE  NTHEEIBEM future minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable
HEPFHMARRZEHERKKNIEBEL operating leases with its tenants falling due as follows:
BT :
—E-NmF ZFE—=F
2014 2013
AR®F AR FT
RMB’000 RMB’000
—F K Within one year 38,812 35,114
F_EFRAF(BIEEEMTF) Inthe second to fifth years, inclusive 64,841 52,918
HF1% After five years 9,892 11,251
113,545 99,283
(b) AFRAEBEA (b) As lessee
ARBREREZHERHLEES The Group leases certain of the office properties and
THAMERAXRMEGELHET commercial properties (see (c) below) under operating
X(c))  EREMMEMRBA6MEA lease arrangements. Leases for the properties are
E22F o negotiated for terms ranging from 6 months to 22 years.
R#|ERR NEERETAH At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total
HEEMHE RTINHREIHN future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
AR EFKIFABOT operating leases falling due as follows:
—EB-NmEF —F—=
2014 2013
AR%Fx ARMTFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
—F R Within one year 77,611 85,873
F_EZERF(BEBEEME) Inthe second to fifth years, inclusive 335,803 347,553
hF& After five years 747,810 823,712
1,161,224 1,257,138
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36. EEHARMGE)

(c) HHHEZH
REBRZZE—Z—_F+ KB
EMNZE TEBEMNEERHE
MEBARMWKEESHEEL %5
MEDNMBIE=FHEE  RiE
B REM T NGBS o

FERBHESE

BETIBEPHNBREFIA—
ETAF -RBEHKR A5HE
RETAIHEEERZHE R T
H ] 1) 5 & R 2K & (K e W R P 19
BHBEBENT

36. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
(CONT'D)

(c)

Subleasing arrangements

The Group acquired Guangzhou Zhide in December
2012 and commenced its subleasing business through
Guangzhou Zhide and its subsidiaries by refurnishing
and subleasing the properties leased from independent
third parties to external tenants.

Sublease payments to be received

Terms for subleasing to external tenants are negotiated
ranging from one to fifteen years. As at the end of the
reporting period, the Group had total future minimum
sublease payments expected to be received under non-
cancellable subleasing arrangements with its tenants
falling due as follows:

—E-NF TE—Z=F

2014 2013

AR%Fx ARMF T

RMB’000 RMB’000

—FR Within one year 158,607 119,820
F_EERAF(BEEEME) Inthe second to fifth years, inclusive 260,469 193,412
HF1% After five years 125,571 46,275
544,647 359,507

<>® B R E ARG R A 8 Times Property Holdings Limited



37. ki 37. COMMITMENTS

BT EXMFE36 R HEEHERETE In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in note
Oh - REBRREBARESR LT E R 36 above, the Group had the following capital commitments as
£ at the end of the reporting period:
—E-NmEF —FE—=4F
2014 2013
AR TR ARBFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
EETHERIEH B - Contracted, but not provided for:

HETH Leasehold land 690,740 1,612,383
Y Properties under development 5,691,226 5,235,880
e = Equity investment 80,000 80,000
WHE S i Acquisition of non-controlling interests 19,490 19,490
6,481,456 6,947,753

AN REBEMBZE AR B 5 &N E In addition, the Group’s share of an associate’s own capital

E(WRFALE)MT - commitments which are not included above is as follows:
—E-NEF —FE—=F
2014 2013
AR¥FT ARBETF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
EETHERIER B - Contracted, but not provided for:

e Y Properties under development 1,931 1,467
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38. ABIAXH
(@) BTAMBREE M REN

38.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed

R RERIN REBRREH elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group had
NEBEB T ZEFENATEARAR the following material transactions with related parties
2 during the reporting period:
—E-mF —E—=F
2014 2013
HifaE AR¥FT ARETFIT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
MEMMRRERMPES Lease of office premises from Guangzhou
BRRAIRE—L+t Times Development Enterprise Group
HE DS Company Limited and Ms. Li Yiping 0) 1,295 1,295
HETF—REFHNWE Sale of a property to a director (ii) 5,642 —
6,937 1,295

EX

0) BEMTERERCEXEEERAF
(BREREE DI -—HAR-_Z—F
FoSEEEEN R T ——F
A2 SIS A R SUR S IR B R
BIHRE] - F— LT RSIELE
MBS - HEEX R GFERHETE
UEZTEEE LGRS

(i) HET - REEZNEBRIZRIE
WP BLE=FHOMEEREDL -

(b) EEBINEMRS
(i) REEFER AKEER
BENEAENER EE AR
REREEIMNETHE

=

(i RBEFER ARFAIHNE
BNBARRREEMER
RHESERANER EERAR
HRLSREZ KRBT —
HERTHEEN - HREEEE
WRBLILLF TR E -

(c) EHEBINAEERLR
HMEAMBRRARPAEE
AEHEBREANERTDER
2B BEBETERYR -

<>® B R E ARG R A 8 Times Property Holdings Limited

(b)

(c)

Notes:

(i)

(i)

Guangzhou Times Development Enterprise Group Company
Limited (“Times Development Group”) is a company controlled
by Mr. Shum in year 2010 and by Mr. Cen Jiancai, father of Mr.
Shum, from year 2011 onwards. Ms. Li Yiping is the spouse of
Mr. Shum. Rates and conditions of the lease are similar to those
offered to independent third parties.

Price of the property sold to a director was made by reference to
those offered to independent third parties.

Other transactions with related parties

(i)

(i)

The Group used certain trademarks registered by
Times Development Group on a royalty free basis
during the reporting period.

Times Real Estate, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, used and occupied a property with
a gross floor area of approximately 111 sq.m.
owned by Ms. Li Yiping, the spouse of Mr. Shum,
on a rental free basis during the reporting period.

Outstanding balances with related parties

As disclosed in the consolidated statement of financial
position, the Group’s balances with its associates are
unsecured, interest free and have no fixed terms of
repayment.



38. AMA X5 (&) 38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(CONT’'D)
d) AEEBFTZEBAB(BEES) (d)  Compensation for key management personnel (including
B 37 BN - directors) of the Group:
—E-F —F—=%F
2014 2013
AR¥Fix ARBTFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
e FEUMREDIZ= Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 33,234 19,439
FIAHEHTEAT Performance related bonuses 53,624 29,196
RIKEET B Pension scheme contributions 414 351
87,272 48,986
EEFHNE—THBIERGEES Further details of directors’ remuneration are included in
P HMERMIFES - note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.
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30. REME o EMTA 39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY
RER SENSRTAENER The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
SEEWLOT ¢ instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
AEE Group
—E-m{Ef=-F=+—H 31 December 2014
TEEE Financial assets
BXRR At E
FE W =X 18 HErEE st
Available-
Loans and for-sale
receivables financial assets Total
ARM T AR% Tt AR¥ Tt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FEWE 558 Trade receivables 1,224,877 — 1,224,877
FFATER IR Financial assets included in
e R EAMEYFRIE prepayments, deposits
NeMmEE and other receivables 1,060,417 — 1,060,417
JE W & R R B FE Amount due from an associate 222,110 — 222,110
—IHAHEERE An available-for-sale investment — 20,000 20,000
SR HIERITFER Restricted bank deposits 2,691,848 — 2,691,848
ReELKREEED Cash and cash equivalents 2,725,737 — 2,725,737
7,924,989 20,000 7,944,989
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30. BENRSMemI A (R)

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

CATEGORY (CONT’D)

REE () Group (Cont’d)
—E-mFEL=ZA=1+—H (#&) 31 December 2014 (Cont'd)
AR Financial liabilities
REENE EAAEES
TENEREE ROSHEE SReEAs
Financial Financial Financial
liabilities at liabilities liabilities
amortised cost at fair value Total
AR%F T AR¥FT AR¥Fx
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
BB 55R Trade payables 3,556,068 — 3,556,068
FTAE M FE T FRIE & Financial liabilities included in
JEEtRIBENSRAE other payables and accruals 2,243,025 — 2,243,025
SRR TER R EMEF Interest-bearing bank loans
and other borrowings 10,791,381 — 10,791,381
AR ES — AfE#D  Convertible Bonds — debt component 197,218 — 197,218
AR ES — Convertible Bonds —
PTET ALY derivative component — 120,887 120,887
16,787,692 120,887 16,908,579
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3. RENBSHEMIRA(E) 39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

CATEGORY (CONT’D)

REHE Group
—E—=F+-HA=+—-A 31 December 2013
EMEE Financial assets
BERk ATt &
FE UL SR IE M REE ST
Available-
Loans and for-sale
receivables  financial assets Total
ARETFIT ARETIT ARETFIT
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
FEUNE 5 5RI8 Trade receivables 472,532 — 472,532
STATERFRIE Financial assets included in
e REAEWGIA prepayments, deposits
NEeRIEE and other receivables 251,963 — 251,963
RS BS: N B R R IE Amount due from an associate 70,210 — 70,210
AHEERE Available-for-sale investments — 3,100 3,100
SR HISRITIF IR Restricted bank deposits 1,946,083 — 1,946,083
ReRBEEED Cash and cash equivalents 1,721,481 — 1,721,481
4,462,269 3,100 4,465,369
ZHARE Financial liabilities
T
ARG &
MNemas
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
ARETFIT
RMB’000
B8 5308 Trade payables 2,413,862
ST AE AL E R IE K& Financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals
et RENSRBE 2,480,137
ATRRITERMEMER Interest-bearing bank loans and other borrowings 7,402,548
12,296,547
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3. RENBSHEMIR(E) 39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY (CONT’D)

¥/ Company
—E-pmFE+=A=1+—H 31 December 2014
EMEE Financial assets
ERAERFIE
Loans and
receivables
AR TFT
RMB’000
& BT BB A B B FR I8 Amounts due from subsidiaries 4,852,915
SRR B RITIF K Restricted bank deposits 1,282
RekReEEY Cash and cash equivalents 150,011
5,004,208
TEREE Financial liabilities
birg: s BRR
RAGTER BEYED
TEAE =K st
Financial Financial
liabilities at liabilities at
amortised fair value Total
ARBF T ARBTF T ARBF T
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
FTAE A FRIA R Financial liabilities included in
[EFTHRIER S RBE other payables and accruals 148,925 — 148,925
LR IEEPNGIESE €] Amounts due to subsidiaries 127,887 — 127,887
SHESRITERLREMET  Interest-bearing bank loans and
other borrowings 3,316,642 — 3,316,642
AR ES - aEd oy Convertible Bonds — debt component 197,218 — 197,218
AR ES —HTE Convertible Bonds — derivative
TEHD component — 120,887 120,887
3,790,672 120,887 3,911,559
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3. RENBSHEMIRA(E) 39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY (CONT’D)

b N/NE] Company
—E-—=F+=ZHA=+—H 31 December 2013
TEREE Financial assets
B WK IE
Loans and
receivables
ARKFT
RMB’000
SFATENEIE - e R EMEUWETE  Financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and
HEmEE other receivables 273
& U BT BB A R MY 3R IR Amounts due from subsidiaries 1,356,235
HeRIFAESEED Cash and cash equivalents 785,876
2,142,384
TR EE Financial liabilities
g 3
R ANETE &
TREE
Financial
liabilities
at amortised
ARKFT
RMB’000
FT A E A FE A RUIE K B R SR IE Y Financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals
AR 546,894
FE B B A B Y F0E Amounts due to subsidiaries 116,133
663,027

Q@ B R E ARG R A 8 Times Property Holdings Limited
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EMIAMARRKRERLR
REE®

TRMEAEMRBENAABENLZIABR
X57 CGRAZSERHERIN) ERRS
TARSGEBEAR - AT HERBREA
KEERAEE -

BEEEDHG REkBESFEY X
REBITHER  BREZFHE - BHE
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RAEAIMFENRAEEEERESHEM
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=
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==
=]

.

ik

F2WM AR BENREEREAFE
ZEETEMEREAAEE
AREBEANKERARER
ERERAIBERIE

E3IR DA BENREEREAFE
ZEETEMEREAAEBE
AEBEANKERARERS
TR BRE

40. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instruments could be exchanged
in a current transaction between willing parties, other than
in a forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and
assumptions were used to estimate the fair values.

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
cash equivalents, restricted bank deposits, trade receivables,
trade payables, financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables, financial liabilities included
in other payables and accruals and an amount due from an
associate approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to
the short term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of the interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings have been calculated by discounting the expected
future cash flows using rates currently available for instruments
with similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. The
Group’s own non-performance risk for interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings as at 31 December 2014 was assessed
to be insignificant.

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and
disclosing the fair values of financial instruments:

Level 1: fair values measured based on quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2: fair values measured based on valuation techniques
for which the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3: fair values measured based on valuation techniques
for which the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement is unobservable

2014 £ E R & Annual Report 2014 ®<>
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40. EMIRAHLARERLR 40. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
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HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

The Group did not hold any financial assets carried at fair value
as at 31 December 2014.

The Group’s available-for-sale investment as at 31 December
2014 was an unlisted equity investment with a carrying
amount of RMB20,000,000 (31 December 2013: Nil) at an
approximately 5.88% equity interest rate. The investment was
stated at cost because the investment did not have a quoted
market price in an active market. In the opinion of the directors,
the fair value of such investment cannot be measured reliably
and the underlying fair value of investments was not less than
the carrying value of the investment as at 31 December 2014.

As at 31 December 2013, fair values of the Group’s available-
for-sale investments which were disposed of during the year of
2014 were measured based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets (Level 1).

The only financial liability carried at fair value level by the
Group is the derivative component of the Convertible Bonds
issued in July 2014 (note 30), which is included in Level 3
as the measurement of the quantitative information is using
significant unobservable inputs.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair values
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers
into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and financial
liabilities (2013: Nil).



41. EMERABRERHERBEK 41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

AEBENGREETERRESRR S The financial assets of the Group mainly include cash and
ZEY IBRHBRTHER  BRESK cash equivalents, restricted bank deposits, trade receivables,
HFABNRIE e R EMERR financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and other
EHNESMEE BRI 223 HNIER receivables, an amount due from an associate and an available-
—HAHHERE AEENERBEE for-sale investment. The financial liabilities of the Group mainly
TERRENESHRIE  FFAEMER include trade payables, financial liabilities included in other
HREREFTRENESRAE - 5T ERTT payables and accruals, interest-bearing bank loans and other
BERREMERRTBRRES - borrowings and Convertible Bonds.
(a) RIZEEp (@) Interest rate risk
R B B ) T 5 R E) & ke The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
FTEHAREBAFFHN KR interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s bank loans
TEFRREMERER K& and other borrowings bearing floating interest rates. The
8 AR A R R B 2R ¥ R H Group has not used any interest rate swaps to hedge its
=R o interest rate risk.
TR B e ) TH S ) R E) E ke The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
FEHEAEBZHANERFTED interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s long-term
REVEBHEBA - debt obligations with floating interest rates.
RZE—NWNEER_FT—=ZF As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, total bank loans
+ - A=Z=+—8B it AR and other borrowings of RMB3,933,253,000 and
#3,933,253,0007c & A R ¥ RMB5,316,945,000 were with floating interest rates.

5,316,945,000 7T #J f& 5 39 A ¥
BA KL -
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONT’'D)

(a)

Interest rate risk (Cont’d)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all
other variables held constant, of the Group’s profit
before income tax (through the impact of floating rate
bank loans and other borrowings) during the year. There
was no impact on the Group's other equity.

Increase/(decrease) on profit before income tax and
properties under development

—E-—MF —E—=%
2014 2013
AR¥F AR FT
RMB’000 RMB’000
L0 F) R BEAK 100 & EE 25 If 100 basis points decrease in interest rates
B AT 15 B0 A1 ) Profit before income tax 2,259 6,148
kiR ES Properties under development 33,749 35,752
WA RIZS 100 @ E 2 If 100 basis points increase in interest rates
B AT 15 %0 A0 ) Profit before income tax (2,259) (6,148)
FEP Y Properties under development (33,749) (35,752)

<>® B R E ARG R A 8 Times Property Holdings Limited
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(#8)

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONT’'D)

(b) HMEE R B (b) Foreign currency risk
AEEBMEBUNTBEANM % The Group’s businesses are located in Mainland
HRGHUUNARBET A& China and most of the transactions are conducted in
MAEDEERBEHENUNARK RMB. Most of the Group’s assets and liabilities are
HE mETHRITEES  HabfE denominated in RMB, while certain bank balances,
NzHE- - BEEERTHRES other payables and senior notes and the Convertible
AIAE M EREE - AEEHK Bonds are denominated in other foreign currencies. The
ok B AMNEF K@ B o Group has not hedged its foreign exchange rate risk.
TERHAEMEEMEERTE T The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the
BHOBELT EWMEHR A& end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible
BREAFAE(HREBEEERSE change in the RMB exchange rates against HKD, with all
EARBEEINTE) RAEHEH other variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before
MBEA(BERBEFINER)E A tax (due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets
REEBTEERMNSERKE and liabilities) and the Group’s equity (due to translation
B SRR - of foreign operations).

BT BB AT
EzEH FEEFH, [N
(T &) (T &) i,
Increase/ Increase/ (RS

(decrease) in (decrease) Increase/

HKD in profit (decrease)

Rate before tax in equity*

% AR¥TF AR¥Fr

% RMB’000 RMB’000
—F—[UF 2014

mARENSETTIZE If the RMB weakens against the HKD 5 (73,618) 60,057

mARESEBTHE If the RMB strengthens against the HKD 5 73,618 (60,057)
=4 2013

MAREHBTEE If the RMB weakens against the HKD 5 4 41,710

mARESBETHE If the RMB strengthens against the HKD 5 4) (41,710)

*

TREEFH

Excluding retained profits

2014 £ E {5 Annual Report 2014 @
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONT’'D)

(c)

Credit risk

The Group has no concentration of credit risk. The
Group's cash and cash equivalents and restricted bank
deposits are mainly deposited with state-owned banks in
Mainland China.

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents,
restricted bank deposits, trade receivables, financial
assets included in prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, amounts due from associates, and
an available-for-sale investment included in the
consolidated statement of financial position represent
the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation
to its financial assets. The Group has no other financial
assets which carry significant exposure to credit risk.

The Group has arranged bank financing for certain
purchasers of its property units and provided guarantees
to secure the obligations of these purchasers for
repayments. A detailed disclosure of these guarantees
is made in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONT’'D)

(d) REERME (d) Liquidity risk
AEENEEEEEABFRTEN Management of the Group aims to maintain sufficient
BehiReEEYW BAXAEEB cash and cash equivalents, and the Group has available
BRAREHNERBEERBEEMN funding through an adequate amount of committed
ATARE S M HE i T&E - credit facilities to meet its construction commitments.
TEREZBEASERREHRER The table below summarises the maturity profile
BEHNERMBEREBENESRERE of the Group’s financial liabilities at the end of the
KR EAE M o reporting period based on the contractual undiscounted
payments.
rEEF Group
R-_ZE—WN&F+-_A=+—H At 31 December 2014
REXE  SR3ER  3Z12f8A 1%5% BiB5E @t
Less than 3t012 Over
On demand 3 months months 1t 5 years 5 years Total
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT AREFT ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ERESTE Trade payables 3,556,068 — - — — 3,556,068
AR MR HIER Financial liabilities included in other
EirENERAR payables and accruals 1,006,283 — 1,236,742 — — 2,243,025
TBRTERR Interest-bearing bank loans
EfbfEt and other borrowings — 835946 2,049,472 10,394,695 272,661 13,552,774
aRES Convertible Bonds — 6,166 18,497 390,777 - 415,440
4,562,351 842,112 3,304,711 10,785,472 272,661 19,767,307
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41. £ ERER B R RBUEER 41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(#§) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONT'D)
(d) REERR (d) Liquidity risk (Cont'd)
FEE (&) Group (Cont'd)
R-_E—=F+_A=+—H At 31 December 2013
REXE  DR3ER 3EI12EA 1255 e ERES it
Less than 3t 12 QOver
On demand 3 months months 110 byears b years Total

ARBTL  ARETT ARETL  ARETT ARETL ARETT
RMBOOO ~ RMBOOO  RMBUOO ~ RMBOOO  RMBUOO — RMBOOO

ERESHE Trade payables 2,413,862 — — — — 2413862
SAEMENFER Financial liabilities included in other

EHFENSHARE payables and accruals 1,781,362 — — 698,775 — 2480137
SERTERR Interest-bearing bank loans

EffER and other borrowings — 1112709 1341032 5687703 304956 8446400

4,195,224 1,112,709 1341032 6,386,478 30495 13,340,399

A Company
R-F-MFT-A=+—H At 31 December 2014
REXE  SH3fER  3Z1288R 1256 BiB5F @t
Less than 3012 Over
On demand 3 months months 1 to 5 years 5 years Total

ARBFR ARBTR ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETR
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

STAEMENTER Financial liabilities included in other

ETENSRER payables and accruals 148,925 — — — — 148,925
ERIEARMNTE Amounts due to subsidiaries 127,887 - - - - 127,887
FERTERR Interest-bearing bank loans

LR and other borrowings — 196,426 196,426 4,458,186 — 4,851,038
makES Convertible Bonds — 6,166 18,497 390,777 - 415,440

276,812 202,592 214,923 4,848,963 — 5,543,290
AKARR-—_ZE—=ZF%+=_AH All the Company'’s financial liabilities as at 31 December

—t+t—HHNFEZREEHRE 2013 were repayable on demand.
SKEFEE o

<>® B R E ARG R A 8 Times Property Holdings Limited
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EXEH

41.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONT’'D)

Capital management

ARBEEREANBBEAREAREE
BUARBEERZEENEE N - BIRREHR
EHEAEMAEABERGEND X
HMEREEARBARDEARAKAR -

The Group’s objectives of capital management are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

RERAABEARE  AREATHE
SBRRABRE  MEREFEEER - %
TR EEENR D ER

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets
to reduce debt.

AEBABBEEREGL R EEERE
Ko R ENBEFEARERTE - A
BRI B RT R EMERAR(A
RAEMBIOLRFTR) AR RERN A
EEMOBMEREMIRTEHR(BEZREIR

The Group monitors capital on the basis of debt-to-equity ratio.
This ratio is calculated based on net debt and equity. Net debt
is calculated as total interest-bearing bank loans and other
borrowings (as shown in the consolidated statement of financial
position) and debt component of Convertible Bonds less cash

TEFIFE - and bank balances (including restricted bank deposits).
RS R aEFHAES L XN The net debt-to-equity ratios at the end of the reporting periods
o are as follows:
—EF-DmF —F—=
2014 2013
AR®F AR F T
RMB’000 RMB’000
FFEIRITER N EMER Interest-bearing bank loans and other
(M 3E 29) borrowings (note 29) 10,791,381 7,402,548
m:ARkEFNBEEY Add: Debt component of
(Bf3E30) Convertible Bonds (note 30) 197,218 —
o BREe NIBITE (MIFE26) Less: Cash and bank balances (note 26) (5,417,585) (3,667,564)
BEFHE Net debt 5,571,014 3,734,984
s Equity 5,717,055 4,008,421
BEFHEEERILX Net debt-to-equity ratio 97.4% 93.2%

RZZE— @¢+ A=+—8 " WHaskEs Should the debt component of the Convertible Bonds be
MEEBOWHEREIN BB EFEEERL excluded, the net debt-to-equity ratio would be 94% as at 31
Eig 5 94% December 2014.
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42. HEMEEIR

AEBERBEATERNREHRRER -

(@ RZZT—AF—-—ANAH XA
BB AR KKEBRLRRK
BESLNEMNTENEN —
Bt tHHERBRARE
675,750,000 7T © H # K K K A
BRI EREZAEINAR
& 136,000,000 7T °

(b) R-ZZE—FHEF—A=-+NB XK
NRAINKEB AT EMKBEEBA
FIESEMNREMNMERE
MEARAR £ o L4 E B A A
R #1,332,690,00070 © E &
MERER A R FREREZ B
BEX [ ARE 268,000,000 7T

43. MBRERZHLE

el

BHERRER _T-—AF_ANHEE
EeEREEDNE -
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42. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING

43.

PERIOD

The Group has the following material subsequent events:

(a) On 8 January 2015, Times Billion, a subsidiary of
the Company, acquired a parcel of land located
at Zengcheng district, Guangzhou City, through
public bidding. The consideration of the land is
RMB675,750,000, of which Times Billion has paid
RMB136,000,000 as of the date of approval of these
financial statements.

(b)  On 29 January 2015, Guangzhou Tianyi, a subsidiary
of the Company, acquired two adjacent land parcels
located at Luogang district, Guangzhou City, through
public bidding. The total consideration of the land
parcels is RMB1,332,690,000, of which Guangzhou
Tianyi has paid RMB268,000,000 as of the date of
approval of these financial statements.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 6 February 2015.



